CHAPTER I

-and@pbringlng ..

. BATTLE FOR JusTYCE
‘ by Tom Sargan‘b

FAMILY BACKGROUND,

No-account of my work and achievements as Sacretary of ]'USTICE and of the-
events that led up to it wduld he oomplete wit]:mut a tribute to my parents

: s I N i o -
My father s family were. coioniai merchants whosa -'_form_pas had ﬂucmated
with the rises and falls in the" prioe of metals. mbbér and spioas. His '
mother s famil’y, the Carrs of Highgate were sucoessful industria L _"

'Batween them ‘they provideci m& and my brdthers and sisters with a iarqe

company of uncles, aunts and’ oousins and a hackgmund of mmm and

tintslloctual intei‘BSfSw .

- !w

By common ‘consent, ny father was the outstandinq mamher o:f his bwn ' i
family of eight. He was a ‘deeply committed Methndis who radiatsd' i
goodness and kindness and devoted much of”-hi spare' :time and

v .‘s-_,,._._“..,,.,

ﬂqure in the Mincing I.ane, but, he was prone to play the markets'heypad

:,t}\

his firm's ﬁoancial resources and was 00 easuy tulked into unwise deal

shortly after I entersdthe famll,v ll:lh'siness ha go,t:"j ‘ :
of the rubber market and virtually lost evarything. L

of a Herefordshire blacksmith His mother‘was .,acdevout ;&aﬂmdist"who

’*”9 e

~ day, - Harriet Wilson. X
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Shortly after his marriage he became mysteriousiy possessed of a brewery in Pontypoc

My grandfather, William Davies Walters, was his oldest son and sales~director of
the brewery, but he 'got the call' and entered the Methodist ministry. He was a
powerful evangelist, helped to found the London Methodist Misslon and was its
first General Secretary. He married the granddaughter of the Rev Thomas Rought, one
of John Wesley's converts , who bore him fifteen children. They all had impre,ssive
personalities. Five of the seven sons entered the Methodist or Anglican ministry
and two of them became Presidents of the Methodist Conference . She was. a
remarkable woman, if only because she managed to cope with the problem of moving
house every three years with up to ten children. My grandfather thought it. |
discourteous to inspect the new house in advance and my mother used to tell us
stories of how they would arrive and find that four of them had to share a bed - two
at the top and two at'the bottom. By a strange quirk of fate, she was killed while
saving the life of a ohild who had run in front oi__a.brewer's- dray. |

I regarded my- mother as the embodiment of law and order. - Before her. marriage
she had acted as her father 5 secretary and organized all his fund-raising tours‘.
When my father develop.ed political amhitions and fought four elections as- '
I.iberal candidate for North Islington she organized his campalgns and put the = |
fear of God into his agent. At his fourth. attempt he lost by only 500 votes and
would have won if he had not proc.laimed such ‘'strong temperanoe views, - The
busmen at the Holloway Depot used to call out to him. "we'd a.ll vota for you
Norman, if it wasn't for the drink*. - ' SR

v,

Despite her outward sternness, my. mother was essentially kind “and intarested in -~
people, but she lacked imagination and could never come to tems with my father's
romantic nature. She had no sympathy for the rogues and ne er—do-wel.ls who preyed
on his good nature. ' oW I R

We were seven in family and'I was the eldest'of three boys s.andwiched 'between.f:-_ '
four girls, We were brought up very strictly., For those of us. who were at home this
meant regular attendance at morning ‘and evening service and at Sunday Sc.hool. _
My father held daily family prayers after breakfast untﬂ a. :Eew days before his death.
The youngest child sat.on his knee and many torn pages in the family bible bear
witness to this, We lived in a large house in I-Iornsey I.ane standing in four aces of

garden and in my father's more afﬂuent days we were looked after by three maids
and two nurses. But. we enjoyed nhone of ‘the .luxuries of |
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school holidays we made music together on Sunday evenings. This
was the only diversion we were allowed - the playing of games belng ‘

strictly forbidden.

My father's great love was for Handel's Messiah. Every yeai' at Christmas
or Easter, and sometimes both, he took us to the Gallery at the A.I.bert Hall,
where we heard all the great conductors and singers of the day : Sir Thomas
Beecham and Ben Davies' rendering of 'CGomfort Ye' stands out in my
memory. . I have acquired the same love for this mighty work as my father

and have never lost it.

He was also keen on sport and anxious that we should all excel in some way.
He played cricket until he was well over fifty and was playing tennis three
days before he died of a virus pneumonia at the age of 72. -

I can best sum up this brief account of my upbringing and family backgmnd:‘_
by saying that i_tﬁv;és B . impossible to live up to, but was equally impossib.
to live down.. Although it gave me a nartow view of the world, it also gave
me the only personal qualities thatl value and I have never had cause to

regret it.




. Classical Sixth before 1 was fourteen. ST , PR S

- boarding school My elder slster had jas-t gene to Camhrldge. et
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CHAPTER II
EDUCATION AND EARLY CAREER

I was an unpleasantly precoclous child, quick to_leam and with an

excellent memory. Whereas all my brothers and sisters were sent to

boarding school, it was decided that I should go to Highgate School, where
my father had been Dbeforems. Iwas givana good grounding in classics &, mathema
in Highgate Preparatory School and when, at the age of 11, 1 went up to the
Senior School I went straight into the fourth form. In those days- aLHighgate
_the top boys in a-form were. moved up every term ‘and I found myself in the

L

This was {n.many ways a disaster. I was too emotionally immature to be~:cf
accepted by boys of 17 and 18. My form master was a loveable :‘ol'd parson who
had taught my father before me and used to peer at us from time to time over the
top of his spectacles. Some of us took advantage-of ‘this and I,ohee:liarrowly-r
escaped being sent down to the Fifth Form when he caught me playing chess’bh
a pocket set wlt.h the boy sitting next to me, He was, however, a superb :i
classical scholar and fired me with a zeal for writing Greek and Latin verse. -
By the time I was 17% I had won all the available school prl_zes and was awardec

. a minor scholarship at Cambridge. -

l\“ el

My headmaster however, a Drjohnston who bore the approprlate 1nitlals AR
J.A.H. , set great store on major scholarships and persuaded my __fatl'le_::to let_
me stay on for a further year on the understanding that I. would._be_-_made Head_'
Boy. I was also a good all-round athlete and he wanted me to win the Public
Schools Mile Championship. I duly fulfilled this wish and the Times report of
the race : "'l’ Sargant (Highgate) came from nowhere in the last 100 yards to

PR

win easlly to some degree foreshadowed my life style. i L 54 3
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His main wish, however, was denied him. My father's ﬁnancial sltuation i

had taken a turn for the worse._ The younger ohildren wereﬁtﬂl,at*

R \Mf%R-a ‘4
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My brother™ Wilham had set his heart on becomg a doctor. I therefore told :.i"

hi.m__that if he wanted me to give up the idea of going to Cambridge and join him

— g —



in the family business I was ready to do so. I cannot. pretend that this
involved any great sacrifice on my part for by-then I had become bored with

the classics and my thoughts were turning to politics and economics.

There was another reason for my decision that I have not yet mentioned.: I_ had
been afflicted sinee early childhood with a chronic stammer. I was told that
when 1 was a baby, my pram had rolled down some steep steps and I had
sustained a minor concussion., The stammering took a strange form. It came
over me whenever I was faced with a personal confrontation of any kind, or

the need to ask questions or give explanations. This was a great handicap

io me in my personal relations. I could not take an intelligent part in angument
I was constantly teased and became shy, laoking in seif-_conﬁden‘ce, and very

A T I

m‘uch ofa bear. My parents sentme to a: suceession of psychiatrists and :speech

Sia i T T Aeigiadesare ot

therapists but none of them could help me Idid notwant bo speak’ in anartiﬁclalw(
mainly because once 1 got started I could read wit.h comparative ease and twice
won the School reading prize, to the obvious aggravation of masters who had
had to put u'p with.my stammering in class. I could also speak in public :if

I knew what I was going to say. The afﬂiction remained with me untll I wWas wWe

only returned in a mild form when I have been overtired.

After I left school ,_my father sent me to Montpelier University for s_lx.m_onths
to learmnFrench. I there met a Czech girl, some years older than myself,
whom 1 subsequex.'ntly married. My parents advised me stronglly against the '
marriage butl was obstmate' and wanted to escape from my Methodist strait-
jacket. After a few monthe in Mincing Lane_l spent six months in the office
of our agents {n New York. On returning I found that the atmosphere of
Mincing Lane was not to my liking.. I made e., number of good friends but 1 did
not enjoy the wheeling and dealing of the market place. My father got caught
on the wrong side of a steep rise in the price of rubber. This led to a dispute
with his two brothers, the dissolution of the partnership and the loss of my.
father's entire fortune,. He was rescued from bankruptcy by two friendly firms
and started up again on his own. but he could only scrape al modest J'iv'ing and it

- - T e
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became clear that there was no future for me in Mlncing Lane and that I would

e el

i ..

have to ﬂnd some. other way of-earning a living. e mihE e -

It so happened that an old friend of the family was the head of the bullion
department at N. M. Rothschild & Sons who owned the Royal Mint Refinery.
Great Britain's -abandonment of the Gold Standard in 193! had led to large
shipments of gold from India amriving in London for refining. Another clerk
was needed, and I was offered and accepted the job at a'salary of £240 a year
plus free lunches in the staff canteen. In the years that followed I had to
abandon all my political ambitlons . Every' weak-end hundreds‘_of_m ﬂm i_u :
boxes of gold bars arrived on the P & O steamer from India. This was followed
by boxes of gold jewellery from the Near East and Far and bars of melted
.jeweilery for all parts of England. ‘'All this had to be weighed and checked by
a member of the staff before and after refining and the fine gold and silver

contents calculated and the accounts typed.

No sooner had the gold rush subsided that the West African silver eoinage

was sent to London for refining'and realization and this was followed by
thousands of boxes of Chinese dollars, ooliected from the provincial treasuries
and sent to London to finance the Sino?Iapanese war, When theJapanese ]
penetrated the mainiand they plundered what remained, melted it ;tg:st.he_ Tokyo
Mint and sent the resulting rough bars to London. We all knew whe_re it came
from but this did not worry the international bankers who handled it. _‘ . .

We worked long hours for long periods and were pald overtime at the 'generous
rate of 50p for every evening we stopped after 7pm and £l for Saturdays and .
Sundays. Just before the war-'"my friend in charge of the bullion department

died. His successor was a man without scruples ‘'who took an fnstant
e E .-'-r-w'—‘-‘-'—--‘-'J—*-\a.:-.

dislike to me, tumed down any suggestions I made- and block.ed any : L 2 o

g

increases in my salary. By the time war came,we had installed a large copper
rolling plant, and the foundry was turned over to casting brass billets for shell

e g—

cases from swarf and scrap.- I was put in charge of buying, costlng and contml

lmg ma tal supplies and tbmugh the interventlon of LordRothschild I was aventua

.__.._...-

accorded the status of conmerclal manager and given a substantial inm'ease in

salary.
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1 can have nothing but admiration and respect for the members of the Rothschild
family with whom I had to deal. In the early days ot the war Mr Anthony .de
Rothschild, the partner who looked after the Refinery, called together all the stz
and foreman and told us that he would like ¢35 to break even, but we were not to
make any profit. He further told us that there was to be no fiddling over ltoence
applications or unnecessary husbanding of labour. This had an astonishing effec
on morale. We were in a very vulnerahle area, adjacent to docks and a {ql}way
shunting yard. The demand for shells was such thot we had to keep _th'e‘ﬁotzndry
working for three shifts through the worst of the blitz. The work-force agreed to
this on the understanding that two members of staff i«muld roof-spot throughout 1
night and warn them of imminent danger in time for them to get down into the vau
We were lucky enough to escape a direct hit but on many nights there was fire
and destruction all round us and many of the men arrived home to f}nd that their
homes had been bombed. In spite of this there was very little absentesism and

some of the men would walk miles to get home or come {o work.
* * *

CHAPTER m - BN INNOGENT AT LAW

At the beginning of 1938 my marriage started to break up. The: gulf between our
backgrounds and religios :beliefs proved to be too great. We separatad at the er
of the year and I gave her custody of our two daughters then aged -8 and .5.. Sh:
agreed to divorce me in 1942 and 1 married my present wife , Dorothy. She later
married a famous Czech Professor of Egyptology, who gave her a much better

and fuller life than I could ever have done. .

Soon after we parted campany I gave up the flat in which we, had ltved and rente
two rooms in Mornington Crescent for 15/~ a week. ‘After a while some - good frie
offered me a large ground floor room in a flatlet house on Haverstock Hil,
Hampstead.The husband was a pacifist and when war: threatened they decided te
_ 'emigrate to Ausiralia. They offered to sell me the.remainder of their lease andt
fittings for a modest sum thatI was able to borrow from friends. This gave me ¢
financial baée for the next 25 yéars but 1t. bnought about an_enoountef with the
:law which very nearly led to disaster. - ' ‘ B
. In September 1940, before the main blitz on London had started, a marauding pL
-dropped al, 0001bbomb about 300 yds from my house. I went out in the early
morning and found that it had fallen on an Anderson- shelter. Three women had b
in it and had been taken to the Hampstead General Hospital. I thought no more
about it but two weeks later, when the blitz was at its height, my Austrian hous

. keeper telephoned me at the office to tell me that a Mrs Barry and her daughter,

cp oy
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who had just been discharged from hospital, had called and asked i{f I could lat ther
a room.. I told her that she couid take them in and they duly returned with a billetin«

order.

I came home that evening and was horrified by what they told me. They had been in :
flattened Anderson shelter, taken to Hampstead General Hospital and put in a ward
under the care of a Harley Street consultant, Dr Lawson Whale. He had behaved ver
badly to them and other patients in the ward, spoken to them'roughlf and made’>them
cry, and discharged them before they were ready and gvﬂling.to_go.- There was ho do
about the truth of their last complaint. Their faces were still scarred and they were |
a highly nervous state. The next day the other daughter came to the house and con-
firmed what they had told me about Dr Whale. There was a heavy raid that night and
succeeding nights. The other occupants of the house and two neighbours used to |
shelter in my basement and we were all affected by the near panic state of the two
women when the gunfire was heavy or bombs dropped nearby. This prompted me toas

my psychiatrist brother to racomﬁend a sultable sedative. Two nights later I was fire-
watching at the Refinery and after a hectic night I sat down at my typewriter and wro
an angry and undoubtedly libellous letter of protest to the Hospital Secretary. In it
I said that a surgeon in one of the wards had behaved in ai-br_utal -and callous way
towards Mrs Barry and her two daughters and was unfit to be in charge of air-raid |
casualties. I described the way in which they had upset all the occupants of my hou
so that I had had to ask my brother for some sedative puls;f"?ln reply to an enquiry
I identified the surgeon as Mr Lawson Whale, |

b

In due course I received a reply from the Chairman of tl_:eMaqagement Committee, w
by chance was the senior partner in one of the firms _thaf'ha_d .nesct;ed my father from
bankruptcy, assuring me that my complaints had been 1nve_s’s't1.gate'd and found to be
without founda.tion. This made me angrier still and I wrote a further letter saying tha
i was not prepared to accept his assurances and that unless my complaints were’
taken seriously I would take them up with the Minister of Health and our local M.P.
The next communication I reoeived.was‘fmm the solicitor to thé Medical Defence Un
informing me thatI libelled their client, Dr Lawson Whale, and that unless I was

prepared to make an apology in terms dictated by them they would serve me with a w

** This letter to be printed in full.
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I replied to this in conciliatory though somewhat nalve terms .~ I_ sald that

e

no honestman could.be- expected to agree to | signing a document he had not
seen but 1l would be wilnng to meet Mr Whale and, if I found that I had done
him any injustice, to make suitable amends. I also admitted that I had been in

error in assuming that both daughters were in his ward. e

In the meantime [ had decided to go and see the Hospital Secretary. I told him
what had happened as the result of my letter and to my great relief found him
both friendly and sympathetic. He told me ‘off the record’ that Dr Whale was a
strutting game cock who continually upset patients, He hinted that the
Barrys may have been discharged because he wanted the beds for his private -
patients and ‘that Minutes of the Management Committee would be helpful to me.
This was a real gift of providence and greatly strengthened me in my resolve to
resist Mr Whale's demands, but I discovered that it was not necessarily as
helpful as I thought it would be. In those days you could only plead justificatic
in a libel suit if you could prove the truth of every fact in the libel and I had
mistakenly implied that the younger daughter was in Dr Whale s ward., I could

_—— i

therefore only plead- that the letter was, privileged and_ this memit t.hat evidence

' -'-""relating to anyt.hing that had happened afterl had wnttan it oou.ldnnt ba plaade:
o In due course the -writ was- delivered_at my door hy a aeedy looking gentleman '

whom I deﬁantly told to infmm his employers t.hat they had pickad on the wronq mar

1 then decided it was time to take legal advice. I consulted a bmther-in-la_w

- who was a very wise and experienced City solicitor, and he very helpfully .-

arranged for an informal consultation with Valentine Holmes, who was the-leadlr
libel counsel then in practice., His advice was shattering. He told me thatl
had no hope of winning, that the only available defence was qualified

privilege for which he could see no grounds. Unless I could find some way of
settling the action I would fabe financial ruin. . When we left hlm my-brother-in-
law said to me : "If you are determined to fight, Tom, all I can suggest is you
fight it yoursalf“ and this I eventually decided to do. '
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A barrister friend drafted what I thought was an {nadequate defence to the
statement of claim. It started before by saying thatI denied writing the latter.
When I told him this was a nonsense he replied, " You always put that in
because it makes the other side prove it". I told him I wanted none of that, so
we cut it out before I filed it.

The next thing I received was a summons fo appear before a Master to answer
an application by the plaintiff to strike out my defence. I was told that this
was part of the game played with litigants in person, so I went along and
successfully asked for an adjournment and leave to amend. By that time I had
become seriously to wonder whether Mr Holmes had correctly advised me that
I had no grounds for pleading qualified privilege or whether he had done this
tor my own good.. So I borrowed a copy of "Gatley on Libel and Standa_rd'i )
and tock it with me into the country for a long we.ekend. I there’.;fdﬁndi_t__o_é_n; q‘.:' .
relief and amazement that my letter appeared to be covered by qualiﬁed o

10w

privilege under at least four substantial heads, viz. —

(a) 1 was a ratepayer in Hampstead and therefore contributed to the cost of
running the hospital . _ '

(b} IfI was injured in an air-raid I would be taken there _

(c}  The Barrys had been billeted on me and had disturbed my household

(d) 1 had written the letter in good faith and in the public 1nterd st, '

The only open issue appeared to be that of malice and I was confident fhat once

I could get into the withess box, I could dispel any such dlarge As 1t turned out

‘my main problem was how to get: th,ara .

1 accordingly redrafted my grounds to include these points, but before I'could )
finalize them and put them in, I received a call to go and see Sir Kanneth Brown,
the Senior Partner of Kenneth Brown, Baker Baker. Miﬂe had started divorce

——— L s I = SRR

proceedings and he was® acting for her. She had tald him’ ahout the libel actlon a

s i .
T R T r_.»—__,‘_.,_ e

he was worried as. to how its outoome might affect my abﬂity to provide for her

etV PRI SPLL

and our two children. S LT il
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I told him my story and said that if the worst happened'lt would give her me;{:—of n
salary and obtain help from my family. He was a grand old man and very frlendl
and offered to talk to the other side and see if they would agree to an honourabl:
settlement, When I went back to him he _told me that they would accept nothing
less than the apology they had demanded, but in the meantime he had persuaded
Valentine Holmes to tidy up my revised defence. This was met with a lengthy
request for further and better particulars. I was advised to hedge my replies
butI stuck to my resolve not to play any legal games and replied to the ’
questions fully and frankly. In the meantime I had asked all the six people
who had sheltered in the basement with the Barrys if they would come to court
as witnesses, but with one accord they all refused with the excuse that thay
did not want to give evidence against a doctor for fear of what migh; happen to
them if they were taken {ll. I was thus deprived of all my witnessesand my "
remaining hope lay in the Hospital Secretary and his Minute Book, If agalnst
all the advice I had received, I could get it into court. : - .
Then, when I was beginning to despair, I had another gift from previdence .U_'I

I had written to the National Council for Civil Liberties asking if they co_uld glve
me any legal help and I received a call from a young solicitor,John Oliver,
asking me to meet him. I told him my story, he read the pleadings. and then to
my surprise and joy he said : *Mr Sargant, I think you have- quite a good chance

of winning this case.~If you want me to, I will take it on for you on the basis
that you pay me only if we win and I think that I can persuade Iohn Platts Mﬂls

to be your counsel on the same basis®. .:

Before, however, we could have any further conversations, I was laid low by a
serious lung abcess. Some weeks previously, when I yvas.returning from a ﬁisit
to my mother in Sevenoaks, a heav-y bllitz' developed as wa ran inho.Cannon St
Station. During the journey I had got: into conversation with the only other
occupant of the carrfage and had learned that his name was Leitner. and that he
was a Harley Street consultant of Hungarian origin who knew my psych@atrist

brother.
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We waited for a lull in the bombing, ran across to the Bank Underground Station
and had just got down on to the Central Line platform and moved a few yards to
the right when a 2,000 1b bomb landed in the booking-hall. The blast- swept
down the escalator and out on to the platform. All the lights went out and ﬂ:e
air was fllled with swirling dust and debris. We had just recovered from the
first shock when a train drew in and by its lights we could dimly see scores of
bodies lying near the exit from the escalator. Visiting the scene two days later
I learned that 20 or more people waiting for the train had been swept on to the
line and killed by it, By some miracle we had both escaped injury and we later
agreed that we had not felt any blast.

A party of soldiers came off the train and as best we could we sorted out the
living from the dead and helped or carried them down the spiral staircase to the
Northern I.lne_}, .where Dr Leitner set up an emergency medical statlon.‘ There was
no medical supplies or first aid equipment of any kind in the station and no
emergency lighting. Despite this, Dr I.eitner set to work, bound up compound
fractures with'improvised appliances, dressed a score of head wounds and gave
fifty injections or morphiazhe fortunately had in his bag. No man could have=
worked more efficiently and he must have saved many lives. In the course of my
own efforst I had breathed in more dust and debris than was good for me and it we

this that was later the cause of the abcess.

Early the next morning he tracked me down at my home. We exW
-impressions of the night's events and formed an enduring friendship. I wrote
to a senior ofﬁclal at the I-Iome Ofﬂce describing the lack of medical supplies
-and suggestmg that Dr Leitner be sent a letter of thanks.. An enquiry was -
ordered and I received a somewhat curt summons to attend. I ‘asked lf I could
bring Dr I.eitner with me and was told I could, I asked for a station porter who
had provided me with information to be allowed to attend as a witness, but he
did not appear. After we had given our evidenoe the Chairman with the help
of the City Corporation officlals proceeded to refute or explain away a.!l our

critrci sms.,

| They made it appear that we ware the offenders and officlaldom blameless.

There were ample madical supplles in the Guildhall, but the relevant authority'
had not the slructural work for the medical aid post. The lack of emergency
lighting was attributed to the same c:ause. “The Chief Medical Officer said -
blandly that it would be a waste of supplies to equip the shelters in the way

I had suggested they should be, Whenl suggested that many people had been
killed because the only Sanitary facilities were in the street, the Clerk to the
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The enquiry was about to be closed when I suggested that Dr Léi!_:ner should be
thanked for his services . The Chatrman responded grudgingly, adding as if by
way of rebuke that he was lucky to have so much morphine with him. He never

--received a formal letter,

;
el Y

I have told this story at some length because of its relevance to batties-with
officialdom that I was subsequently called upon to wage. ‘

i

I was taken to St Mary's Hospital where I had to stay for six weeks. The chest
consultant looking after me was a friend of my brother and had been told about
my troubles. He took me to his room one night and told me that he would like

. to help me because he thought that the worry about the case was delaying my
recovery. He was on the Council of the Medical Defence Union and would Ty
to persuade them to call it off. A week later he sent for me again and told me
that they would not budge. 1 was the only person who had ever stood up to then
and they were out to smash me. This news was far from cheerful, but it at )

least told me whatI had to face.

‘ When I came out of hospital, Lord Rothschild, who had a watching brief onthe
Refinery, asked me to come and see him. He had been told about my illnesg
and my worries about my case. I explained the full cirqumstances_ to him
and without hesitation he said that he'tljoﬁéht*lﬁag qg;ij;;,é"-right_ to fight the actior
and that he would pay for the best leadir;g counsel I éould obtain; ;_._'_l'his could
only be Vallentine Holines, about whom I had some doubts, but after con‘su}tatior
w ith John Oliver_, I .agreed that he should be briefed. | | - R

I"then had'a méeting with John Platts Mills and explained to him how I wanted
my Idefe!nce'“conducted. I wanted Mr Whale to be cross—examinéd on the basis
that he was a kind and considerate. doctor rather than as a villain.. When I went
into the witness box I wanted to be asked all the awkward questions that.
plaintiff's counsel was likely to ask me so that he woﬁ_ld have no ammunition :
ieft to fire at me. He clearly thought I was a bit mad but'afte; some discussion
he eventually agreed to péss these instructions on to Valentine Holmes,’ ; -
I told him that I had sub-poenad the Hospital Secretary and- _t;he Minute Book
and one of the Barry girls, but he told me that there was no chance of getting
in the Minute Book and expressed doubts about the wisdom"of callin§ the girl;,

CUUIA GG WL R Y el S s ERaetir .
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On the day fixed for the trial I met Mr Holmes outside the court. He told

me that he had been talking to Mr ];P. Sandilands, Mr Whale's counsel, who
had offer_ed not to press for costs if I would make some kind of apology. 1
said that I wasn't interested in any such offer, He then said that I had always
offered to talk to Mr Whale. He was round the corner, so why not go and see
what he had to say? I took his advice but found that he was as obdurate as
his lawyers. I reported this to Mr Holmes who continhued to stall, In the‘elr’ld
my pent-up tensions exploded. I lost my temper and barked at him : "Mr
Holmes, you are being paid to fight the case, so for God's sake get inside and

fight it*. And I pushed him through the door of the court,

Before the trial pmper started there was a legal a:gument about whether or
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not my letter admttting error*should -be kept in the bundle.: I-hadz. = f.._=::'
been advised that it was highly prejudiclal to my case but m“ﬁy_dellght Mr
Justice Atkinson had other ideas. He looked at Mr Holmes and said : "While
you have beeh arguing I have been reading the letter and all tt tells me 13;:thet

Mr Sargant is an honest man®*, This buoyed up my confidence..

Counsel's opening speech for the plaintiff made me squinn. He read out my .
letter in the most pompous tone of voice he could muster, He called me an
interferring busy-body and accused me of being malicious “because I had
refused to accept the assurances of the Chairman of the Management :
Committee. He ended with this jibe : “This man was presumptious enough to
assume the role of a doctor, Perhaps he ‘.nrould like to be the judge in:'ﬁgc;wn-_

case”. This was followed by a succession of doctors and nurses called to testi

fo the kindness and good nature of Dr Whale. A surgeon gave e-vidence to the
effect that Mr Whale had no responsibility for the Barrys and that they showed
no signs of shock when they were discharged. It looked at this point thatI

would need a miracle {f I was to win the case;. I prayed for one and it came.‘ :

At the lunch adjournment, the Hospital Secretary came up to me and said =
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“Mr Sargant, I can't stand this any longer. These witnesses are all telling
lies and I am going to show you the Minute Book”. In it was an item that
read : “The Committee considered a letter from . Mr Tom Saxgant compiaining

about the conduct of Dr Lawson Whale towards some: .ai.r-raid casualties and o
found it to be substantially justified" .

I hastened to show it to Mr Holmes and beseeched him to find some way of |
getting it in. He expressed doubts, but promised to-do his best. My impressio
was that this was the first time he had appreciated the strength of my case and
that his professional reputation was at stake.

‘When the trial zesmhed, Mr Whale went into the withess box and vig_omusly-
denied having ill-treated the Barrys or being in any way responsible for thelr
discharge. Mr Holmes then rose to cross-examine and after asking a few
hammless questions held up the Minute Book. Mr Sandilands promptly jumped‘
up and protested that anything that was in the Minute Book was evidence aftar
the 1ibel and not admissible as evidence on a plea of privilege, Mr Holmes
then played his master trump : "Your Lordship, I would like to point out to my
learned friend that I am not seeking to introduce the Minute Book as evidenca‘
in the case, but merely to rebut the charge of malice mé"d:a':against my clisnt
because he refused to accept the assurances of the Chairman of the |
Management Committee. The Judge acceptsd this. The usher handed the Book
to Mr Whale and the following exchange took p_laq:e._ - " ' IR

Mr Holmes : *Now, Mr Whale, have you _éver.seen that book before 7"
Mr Whale : "No, sir”.

Mr Holmes : "Will you pleasa look at tha top of that left hand page and

read what it says"

Mr Holmes : (After a pause) *Will you pleasa read it aloud.
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Mr Whale : (hesitantly) *The Management Committee considered a
letter from Mr Tom Sargant oomplaining about the conduct
of Mr Lawson Whale “towards somemaa.re-mid pntienj:s énd founc
it to be- substantially justified”., -

Mr Holmes : “We did not hear it properly, Mr Whale, so will you please

read it again more clearly”.

And so the embarassed Mr Whale twice had to read out his own condemnauon.

I naturally thought that this would be the end of the case.’': Mr Holmes left

‘the Court to go to another case ., but: Mr Plattis Mills rose and told theJudge

that he proposed to argue the case for qualified privelege. *There is no need fc
you to do that” the judge replied. “The letter is clearly protected by qualified
privilege. The only issue is malice, so will you please put your clie_nt in the

witness box".

My examination and cross-examination went exactly as I had planned it.

When Mr Sandilands rose to cross-examine me, he quickly ran out of questions
and unwisely asked me why I had not withdrawn niy complaint after the '
Chaiman of the Management Committee had told me that it was without _
foundation, I turned to the Judge and asked him if I could answer tl'xe questton i
full. He told me to go ahead and I was thus free to tell him about my
conversation with the Secretary and 6£ his desdriptlc_m of MrIWh_ale.as a struttine
gamecock. For good measure I threw in two or' three other opinilt-ms Ihad -
obtained at the time from nurses and former patients. "Mr Sandilands threw up

his hands and sat down.

For the second time I thought that the battle was at an end, but
this was not to be. He wanted to show that I had based my’letter - o
on unreliable evidence and we had to call Eileen Barry. - Her- evidence was’ B
shattering. With a strong, clear volce and the scars still visible on her face
she gave a straightforward account of how Mr Whale had behaved towards her’
and other patients in her ward. Mr Sandilands ‘dare not cross—examine her but

hastily asked for an adjournment on the grounds that he had to go to anlother

- case. On the following morning, counsel on both sides conferred and ~ -

Mr Holmes came and told me that Mr Whale was ready to withdraw his action or

my terms and pay all my costs . I was asked, however, if1 wo_uld be merciful
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as he was shortly to face a serlous charge of knocking down and injuring a
young girl on a pedestrian crossing, In the end I agreed that his counsel
would say on his behalf that, having seen Mr Sargant in the withess box

he was satisfled he had acted responsibly and throughout in good faith.

For my part I agreed to say that my letter was too strong in {ts terms and * '

I was sorry.

Mr Justice Atkinson, who had behaved with impeccable fairness to me throughc
the trial, thought it necessary to say that he was very satisfied with the resuli
of the case so long as it was clear that there was no reflection on Mr Whale.
He further took unfair advantage of his judicial position by making cruel and
uncalled remarks about hysterical women, This rightly made Mrs Barry and
her daughtefs very angry. |

For my part I could not resist saying to Mr Sandilands after we had agreed
the terms of the settlement : *You see, Mr Sandilands, I was the judge in my

own case after all%,

I later leamed that either Mr Whale had not been aware of the contents of the

"Minute Book or he had not told- his sol.icltors about them...If he _had the actlon

P -
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"-_would pmbably never have been brought.

I did not obtain all the satisfaction I was entitled to because the terms of the
| agreed order did not entitle me to recover all the costs I had incurred and the

; Press reports of the trial pmceedlngs were heavily biassed on the side of
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Mr Whale, . They did not even hint at any of the evidence 1nmyfavou;'wh1chhad

come outin the course of the trial But 1 had justiﬁed my "stand and ..
vindicated my falth and this is what most mattered to me. '

. Above all, I galned first hand experie_rioe of the unbelievable pressures
which e'an be and are brought to bear on litigants who dare to stand up to
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powerful vested interests, and I have often wondered what would have
happened if I had come from a different background and had not been, - -

as my mother used to describe me . "as obstinate as a mule®,

disillusioned litigants who came and descrlbed to me how they had received

similar treatment.
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CHAPTER IV
PQAITICAL INTERIUDS

Not long after my libel action had bssn sattiad. I was given the chance to
ranaw my activa intarast in the political struggle. In the 1918 slection,when

[ was 13, my aldast sistar and | had gonse hand In hand knocking on doors 1n
Upper Holloway, glving out lsafiets and asking people to vote for our daddy.

By 1923 1 had graduatad to mounting soap boxes at strast corners. When, after
1925, my father ratirad from the battia, the Liberal vots gradually dwindlad

and in tha 193] and 1935 slactions wa both spoke for the Labour candidate , who
was a fallow Maethodist., But baoauss of (ts bigotry I could navar bring myself .
to ioin the locel Labour Party.

I was howsvar bacoming increasingly concarned with tha plight of the poor
and tha avils of unamployment and in the sarly months of the war [ was made
conscious of & number of ways In which the war affort was betng undermined
by commercial considsrations. I decidad to write a book which [ entitled
- *"These Things Shall Be®. It was in the main a plea for a new and mors just

social order of the war and it forcafully arguad ths case for the assential
~ unrnity of raliglon and polltics. 1 had nevar baan able to understand how

80 many sincara Christians sould dally recite the Lordy Prayer but close their
minds to the implications of its first two sentancas and fail to obl.;.:;va that
tt made no mention of preparation for the lifs heraafter. 244 [ was bacoming
incraasingly impressed by ths principlas and pracspts of soctal and sconomic
justice taught by the prophets in the Old Testamaent,

. The bobk was accaptad by Heinsmamand went into two aditions. and was
chosan by 'Fr_.:yle'a Religious Book Club aa its book of the month, Tha Prass
ravlaw:lv:vare malnly critical but I drew éomfort from tha fact that its
datraétl:_u_c had to raiqrt to snaars in'm'd_ar to maka their palnts. A frlend of
mine ih;wad it to Sir Richard Acland who was then launching tha Christian
Soclalist movanmit Common Wealth, He invitad me to join lt'an-ld'l was elacted
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man: & visionary and prophet ahaad of his time. He had besen Liberal M.P,. for
Barnstaple since 1935, He was converiad to tha aconomics of socialism in 1837
by Kayna's 'Genaeral Theory' but pesrcsived and preachad it as a moral force. His
evangalism was in ths tradition of John Wasley whose sarmons ware dascribed

by 2 contamporary as "liks hammar blows on an anvil™, By the powar of sincerity
and intslisctual srgument he could parsuada membars of tha middle-classes that
they war2 gulilty of not caring about tha plight of thair fallow maen., His first book
“Unser Kampf“, published in 1940, sold 100,000 copies In three months and brought
him thousands of lattare from all ovar thz country. Tha racruits to the movement
includad doctors, lawyers, teachers, writers, parsons and industrialists . who had
previously played no part in politics. They included # mumber of independent
Marxists and agnostics who accaptad tha principlas and purposses of the movement,

After a while, it bacama claar that Common Wealth could not continue simply as 2
movament. The political truce was tampting adventuras to stand as independant
ocandidatas at by~slactions and ws dacidad to enter the political arana. There were
than thraa vacant seats and in january 1943 [ agraed to go down to Portsmouth to
fight Admiral Sir William Jomas, the Commandar-in-Chief and the original of Mllla;s'
famous picture *Bybbles’. To the dismay of some of his non-Jswish hirelings ., Mr
Anthony Rothschiid gave ms three weaks leave of absence, but [ had no sooner
amrivad in Portsmouth and snnounced my candideature than the Conservatives, taken
by surprise, postponed the polling dats for thres weeks. So 1 had to return to
London and start off ell over again,

When I got to work the outlook was indsad grim. Thers was a total black~out which
mads it very difficult to hold Indoor meatings. The ragister _wai hopelessly out of
date., 1 was allotted an alderly and Incompetent agent, All 1 could obtain for

& committes room wag sn smpty fishmongers shopwhich stank to high heaven,
Russia was by than our ally, communists ware activaly campaigning on behalf of
the Admiral and the locel Labour party treated me with indifferenca and suspicion.

In a vary short tima hqquerl discovered throa- ways {n which I could attract attanttior

and support. Every day at lunch-time I got up on & chalr and haranguéd tha
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dockyard workars at the dock gatesy | mada friends with the assistant Bditor of
the Portsmouth Gazetta and fed him with news about my campaign . and 1 launchad
a postar campaign. The most effsctive was one 1 had devised for our national
campaign aad had bsen commendad by the Archbishop of York :

COMMON WEALTH
asks

Is ip8xpadtent?

Doaf it paY?

Is it rightY

Anothar was :

ARE YOU AN IDIOT?

You may think you are not - but the word _ -

idiot comes from a Gree¥ viord which msans

one who only iooks aftar his privata affairs

and takas no interest in public affsire.
Fostunately the campaign had its lighter moments. A Ghief Patty Officer named
Foster anrouncad his intention of standing as a candidats representing the
lower deck. This was regardad as akin to treason by the Admirsl's supporters
and pressure was brought on him to withdraw. He used to come into my commitise
room every avaning and tell ms about his troubles. Hz was finally persusdad to
withdraw by a thraat that would ba posted ovarssas. The following night he
appaarad on the Admiral's platform and laid how sorry he was aver to have thought of
opposing him and promised to support gm The naxt day, Tom Driberg, who
had just won & by-election at Maiden as an Indepandent backed by Common Waalth
came down to speak for ma. I told him the sad story. and also that 3 young aerd
Lisutenant was anxious to speak for me but had besn refused psrmission. On his
return to London, he askad & quastion in Parilamant with the result that a spacial
signal s'as sent to sl the ships In tha Hoe Fleet raminding all ranks that, unless
they wore candidates, they wers not allowad to take an active part in any slection.
On tha day of tha count, I was talking to the Lord Mayor when Admiral Ioael came
up to hlm and sald : *Mr Mayor ~ your officlals don't know the mlu. Thay let me
out of the room when thay ought not to have done.". I could not resist mmarklnq t

- "It's no_t so surprising ; even Admirals somstimes ignomKing's Regulatlons .

As tho da yt put. lupporters and halport started drlfunq into my commlttu room.
We sat up till three in the mornlng addraulnq snvslopas and ﬁlllng them with

-
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elaction addrasses and poll cards, Individual members of tha Labour Party ignored
their isaders addica and {n the end 1 polied 2,500 votes against the Admiral's
4,000,

By the and of 1944 Common Wealth had fought and won two remarkabia by-slsttions
and had movad its campaigning team into four constituencias that wers fought and
won by responsible indapendant candidates. At Eddesbyry In April 1943, Flight
Lisutenant John Loverseal won Eddisbury by 500 votes, in Jonuary 1944 Hugh Lawson

a civil enginessr, won Skipton by 200. 1~ both these constituanciss, Conservatives
had been raturned unopposed in 1935 and an indepandent candidate polled 3000 votas,
Than in May iS45, Flight Lisutanant Emast Millington achieved a sensational vlctory'
at Chelmsford, turning a Consarvative majority of 12,000 into a8 Common Wealth
majority of §,000,

But as the time ofh the Genseral Election approached it bacame clsar that we could not
survive the ending of the political truce. The Labour Party had been ﬂunromlttlngly
hostile and had mads Common Wealith 8 proscribed organization. There was no chance
of a deal over ssats and all but 23 of our prospective candidatas ware withdrawn.

Of these, only ona, Emast Mlillington, was returnad to Parliamant and only two

saved thalr deposits.

I was mors fortunate than most of our candidates, After the by-slaction in North
Portsmouth I had nursed the constituancy and built up 8 Common Waalth branch of
over 200 mambers. I had some hopes that the Labour Party would lat me fight the saat
at the Gamaral clection and up to a month bafors Polling Day it had showaed no signs

. of activity. I therafors want ahaad with my campalgn, addrassing envalopes,

drafting my slection addresseand holding two meetings, Four days latar, the Labour
Party announced that it was fighting ths seat and had adopted Donald Bruce, now
Lord_Bh;ca‘ as lte candidate, This caused constamation in my camp, labour Party

' _membei‘i who had promised ma thelr support teld mé that thay facad an agoniging
‘confliot of loyaities and begged ma to stand down. My more snthusiastic Common

Wealth members baggad me to stay and fight, I could sse no way of rasolving my
dilemma with honour until I learnad that as yet no Labour candidate had baen adopted
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in the nelghbouring constituancy of Sast Hants. } thersfore decided to go and talk\m
Donald Bruca secretly by night and offsr to stand down 1f he could obtain an '
undertaking from Transport House that thers would ba no Labour candidats n Bast Hants
and would taks ma ovar to Petarsfiald end commend ma to ths officers of the local
Labour Party. The deal was done and I announced it at my meating on the following
day. 1 handdd over all my canvassing records and addrassad snvalopes to Donald
Bruce and we mads our way togather to Patarsflold with thres weeks to go before
Polling Day.

Io my dismay, I found that thers was no Labour Party in Patersfleld . or in any other
town in the constituency., There was sn alderly former chairman, 8 woman secrstary
of the Co-oparative Sociaty and an unattachad group of left-wing teachers, which
included tha headmaster 2t Dartington S8chool. At the General Election of 1935, with
no Libsral candidate, Labour had polled 6000 against ths Consarvative's 23,008. The
sitting member, Gensral Sir Gaorgs Jeffrays (whose wife was a Lady Cantsloups ta her
own right) had been returnad unopposed et a by-staction in 194l, This tims, there was
strong Liberal candidate, Flight !.leut. Basil Galdltzr-\:’. who had arrived there 10 days
before me. He had already wooed the nonconformist, was supportad by the communists
and had already clroulatsd his election address to the armed forces. The headmaster
called a meeting of about a8 doxen potential suppofters at the school and when I told
them why [ had come to Patersfisld they politaly ssksd ma to go away. They bad all
decided to support the Liberal candidats as thés offerad the only chance of beating

8ir George Jeffreys. I was too proud and obstinats to abandon my announced
intentions so I patiently argued with them for two hours and awntﬁaﬁy persuaded them
that thera was no chance of a Libers! victory and that it was important for the future
that the Socialist flag should be flown.

The Co-op gave me a committee room and I managad to soquirs an energetic young hqam
A group of my Common Waalth supporters cama up avery avaning from Portsmouth to
addrua_ anvelopas and canvassin Patersfield, Almost immedletely I received the

. first bf a daily flow of anonymous postcards which read : “Go "atéay Tom and sava your
depostt®., . On the fourth day I dacldad to explore tha cohsti'tﬁency which included four
towns, 53 vllhgn and naarly as many hamlets, I started in Nm Alresford, a feudal

town on the way to Wlnchutar. 1 lpont the day canvaulng ﬁot suppomu wlthout any

e T
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succasi and at 6 o'clock turned into a louﬁor a glass df cider. 1 startad chatting

to ths landlord, told him who [ was and abo::t my fallure to find any support in the
town. I talkad about holding a meeting in the Town Hall but he warned ma that any
posters [ put up would bs torn down. Hs was ths brother of the Labour M,P. , Gaorge
\l'tqq, but a staunch Conservative. He thersfora surprised me when he said, "You'va
got an honast fec2 and I would like to heip you. I own the local cinama and if you
go and book the Town Hall for next Baturday | will advartiss it for you on the screan”.

This I duly did and I amivad at tha Town Hall with an agad trade unionist officni as

my chairman and the Flight Lieutenant from Portsmouth as my supporting spsaker, Ther
were about thirty paople presant. The Flight Lisutanant spoke first with conslderabla
force but without response. [ followed him and thought I was speaking reasonably
wall but no-one batted an ayslid or clapped when I sat down. The Chainnan invitad
questions but there wars no quastions. I asked anyons who was willing to halp ma

to siay bshind. I got down from the platform and stood by the door, But they all filed
out without sven looking &: me,

Wa thought we'd had it in New Alresford but 1 decided to repeat the axerciss and
addvriisadl the masting by loudspeakar. Whan we arived, we found the hall full to
cepacity with 15-20 standing round the back. The Flight Isutenant mada his stock
speoabh with no visible reaction. I msda very much the same spsaabh but I apent
some time stressing the moral espact of Socislism and in denouncing the faudal hold
ovar the arsa. As I had toured the villages with a loudspaaker tha inhabitants
would listen from behind their curtains but wers too frightsnsd to come out and talk
to me.

: havg boos
Even this producad no reaction ~ I might just as wall bg talking to rows of dummies.
The Chairman askad for questions. Thers was a long silence and then an elderly |

‘gentlaman stood up and said : "I don't want to ask a qu'astlpn but to makz a

statament. As averyone hare knows, I have bean the doctor in this town for many
ysars, What Mr Sargant has gaid about the feudal syatm;n in .thu ared ls tma.. s 1
g0 on iny rounds In the viilages, it makes me quite sick to see how'!riqmenad all t_ha
people are to say what they really think, I can also say ithdt 1 -!_mh wantad ail my

1ile to hear soclaliasm pua&ad in the l.pirtt that Mr Sargant has done, | pro:ﬁlu
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him my whole -hsarted support”. At this, the dummiss ceme to life with smiles and
chsari. As soon as they died down a somewhat forbidding looking lady in the

third row, whom I had tsken for an opposition spy, got up and said tome, "My
nams is h.rs Tope. | am the wife of Major-General Tope and we live {n the Square,
I agree with evarything that Dr Merrion has sald and you havs my full suppott as

wall”,

Wher the ensuing hubbub had subsided, I asked for any ons who wantedto halp me

to stay bshind. About a dpzen did so and 1 was offerad a committes room in 8 private

house. Dr Merrioh gavs me £250 and distributad my loafists {n tha villagas ss he

went on his rounds, Mrs Tope gave me £100 and put up window bills, But, far -

more important, it was widaly raportad Ln the £ast Hants press that Dr Merrion and
irs Topa had ‘stool up’ tn my meating,

From that point my campatign startad to take off and offers of help came Lo from ather
parts of th2 constituancy. I found that thers was no longer the sama faar of being
Soan coming to my mestings or listening to me in the open air, Whan, on the

- ave of # politng day, I arrivad at New Alresford I found 2 crowd of 6§00 or mora
waiting for me in the Square. The feudal hold on that arsa at least hod besn wsll
and truly broken,

The result of the poll was : General 8ir Goorge Jeffrays 20208
Flight Lisut Basii Goldstoke 8268
Tom Sargant 6600

I had at least saved my deposit and the honour of Common Waalth. Donsid Bruce
won North Pottsmouth with a comfortable majority.

At & national conference hold some months aftir the General Election, it was

dectdad that tha party should bs dissolved and {ts members {then numbaring 15,000)
advisaed to join the Labowr Paru. This was a dpressing anding to & glorious and
exclunq anterprisa. We all thought that we haad tauad and I leamad only threa
years- lator from tha late Arthur Greenwood that Junbaknown to us wnad chanqad the
courss of history. At the end of tha war thers was a ltrong differenca of opinion in the
laadouhip of the I.abour Party as to whethar thoy lhould stay ln tha coalkith as

Lioyd George had done ., or come out of it and tl.qht. Those who wanted to braak with
Churchill and fight ware abla to invoke the Common Weaalth by-slection victories and
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[ duly joined the Hampstesd Labour Party, became its Vice~Chaimman and was adopt-
od as oendidats for South Hendon in tha 1950 General Elaction. It was & seat | had
Bo chance of winning but I did reasonably well. The sitting Conservative member
wes 3tr Hugh Lucas-Booth and the Libaral candidate was tha golfer, Cyril Tolley.
We all respacted each other and kept the tight free from personslities. It was ot

this election that I first enoountsred Gersid Gardiner who spoka at my eva of poll
Reeting and mada the most cogent and moving slaction spesch I have bean
privilegad to hear.

At the 1955 Genaral Election I fought Wast Lewisham. The Conssrvotive majority
at ths last slection had basn only 2,000 and I had high hopes of winning the seat,
but Harold MacMilian's election ary "You've never had It 30 good® ceught the mood
of ths slectorate, producad a general deciine ia the Labour vote and I lost by 4.,000.
1 had prasched a quits diffarent gospal of unselfishness in national and internationa)
affoirs. I later falled to secure re-adoption becsuse, as I was iater told, I hadmet
bashed the Toriss hard enough. -

During this post-war psriod 1 had attandad and spoken at four Labour Party
confsrances and also become an active member of the supsrvisors snd axecutives
unlon then known as A.8.8.E.T. It was a good and progressive union with the motto
Maintain the Right and advooatsd a national wages policy to bs sdministered by the
T.U.C. Por unr;l woars I was Chainnan of 1ta London District Council and
Exscutives Staff Board which wers both under threat of being taken over by
communists and their sympathtsers. I kept up my mb’?hm untii, under & new nam.
and new lsadershig the union abandoned its old snd came out in favour

of an alien gospel that the prizes go to ths strong.




In 1947, I parted company with the Rothschilde. My political activitiss wera the
subjact of adverse comment in tha banking offica. My arch snany there said thay
could not understand why ths partnars lst me got away with Lt. The managsr of

tho refinsry diad and he recomte:ndad the appoinmant of th: works chief-chemist,

a fallow fraam;rf ﬂwho had no sxpertencs of managament. I dscided that there was
no futura for me and :f,! offarad th= 191: of managar of & firm of non-farrous matal
merchants. This didn't work out. 1 dldn t ilka ths diractors trading methods and -
1 lackad th3 qualitlss raquirad of a salasman. He paid me off and aftar an intarval

1 want back to tha Matal Exchanga as market clerk and assistant to a partner. We
got on well but my reactions ware too slow 1o cop2 with hactic manner of treding and
I was passed over to an associate ftose which tradad in non~ferrous metals in the

international markats,

At this tima there ware savere restrictions on the axport of strotagic materisls,
espacially metals, to communist countries and 1 felt myself indirectly involved in
illicitd2alings of verious kinds. City firms of high rspute ware taking part in this
exsrcise. Thousands of tons of coppar wire bars and stratagic ms tals destined

for bahind the Iron Curtain ware baing shipped to Tanglar and Gdynia and to Macao
for China. I dacidad to move to gt anothar firm whose director I had known for
many ysars. We got on weall until he {nsistad that I should ranague on 8 contmot

I bad entared into with his approval. Somse months earlisr my lung had bean troubling
me agaln, I was feeling very tired and in noead of rest and it was agraad that !
should resign from the firm at tha end of the yaar.

I had Baan to the chast clinlc and threa days before Christmas 1955 my consultant
sent for me and told me that thare ware signs of tubarculosts and that I would have
to go to bad for nine months. Apart from the aggravation this meant I would be -
without any {ncoma until 1 recoverad and could find another job to my ltking. My
wife dld not waﬁt ms to go into hospital and,although sha was workinq full-time as
& taachar in Hmttﬁ she insistad on nursing me at homa with the halp of har

mother who Iived with us. My brother providad soma financial help.__

B i
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When, at the and of Septamber, 1 startad to get up and was silowsd to get around,

I gradually fell into & deap dapression. [ hatad the ide2 of going beck to the City.

I appliad without success for two or thras socially usaful jobs but I was by then

over 50 and had no university degrea or other qualifications. I began seriously to
doubt {f the futurs haid anything worth while for me to do. Then, towardu tha snd

of Novamber, thera came out of the blua a telaphone call from Peter ﬂon;‘d‘t:?l.

young f§obialist barristsr with whom I had mada friends at the Labour Party Confersnces
He had persuadsd some laading layyars in sll thr2a parties 1o take joint action
over tha mass treason triels in South Africa and Hungary and asked me {f I would
like to come and help him. Ijmped at the invitation. With the financiel help of
Christtan Actlon arrangaments were made for Gerald Gardiner Q.C. to attend tha'
opaning stagas of the trial in South Africa whare 81 blacks wers herded into &
disused warshouse and charged with high tmason. His arrival not only focussed
world attantion on the trial, but sncouragad the Johannesburg Bar to organise the
prisoners’ dafancae. A succession of distinguished lawyers were sant out as

-

obsasrvers and all tha acoused wars finally acquitted.
i RALE, el Bananton gbisnat pomision Foastont ms chomse giEiade, .
Efforts to sacura tha admission of obssrvars to Hungary wara unsuccassful but in
9w Fabruary 1957 membars of tha JUSTICE group led by Sir Hoartley Bhawcross mat
saprassntativas of the Intarnational Commission of Jurists to discuss the
continuing repression tn Hungary and to prepare evidenca for prasantation to the
Unitsd Nations Committas of Five.

We had made sarly contact with Norman Marsh, » Fallow of University Gollege
Oxford, who had recantly been appointad Samtartho“r::ral of the Commission.

He had shared our concarn over avents in South Africa and wa found that he was
anxtous to form national sections. Patar Benaﬁon had for & long time wantad to

form an all-party human rights society but the Conuarvativas had always f2ared

‘with good raason that it would be used by the left for political ends. The sppearanca
on tba scene providad a goldan opportunity for hun to ahhleva his wish. I told him
that lt such a sociaty could ba formed I would jukc to bs ita secretary. His

rssponsa was that if 1t was formed, which he Fﬂlought unllkely, it would haw no

funds t.o empioy a secretary and if 1t had it v{puld want 2 ynunq uwyer. He urged

me to go o!! and look for a job, but§ hung ;‘rot_md m hopes.
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The nagotiations ware not sasy. Sirjohn Fostsr and John Armold (now Lord

Justice Armold) wers the prime movers for the Conservativas but their committes was
faarful of antering into any firm commitment. John Arnoid ceme along to one

maating and told us 1t had decided not to Juln in » to which Lord Bhawcross, as ha
was shortly to bacome, replisd with faeling : "I suppose that maans we have to say
‘that's JUSTICE - that was' ”. But Conservative fsars were graduslly dissolved and «
8t a meoting with Norman Marsh in January 1957 it wag agread that each of thrae party
Sasociations should nominats thres members to the Councli » which should be
completad, after further consultation, by the Commission issuing invitations to a
number of solicitors and professors of law. Lord Shawcross, tha British member of
the Commission, was invitad to be Chalman’snd it was decided to stick to the

name JUSTICE which Patar Banedon had g'uvu the ad hoc group.,

-

With my hopes thus raissd I want into his chambers, looked aftar comraspondenoce
and mads the arrangemants for Gerald Gardinar's report back meating in the
Niblelt which sttracted an sudisnce of 300. My mothar gave ms £20 to buy a new
~ suit sand overcoat to go to the Hag_u_o o the ten haadquarta_rs of the Commission. 1
there haard about tho work of the Commission and workad out the basis of future
Go-operation with Norman Marsh and Eddy Kozers., its dunarican administrative
sacretary. They generously offarad to provide 2 loan of £1000 and to circulate
membarship lsafiets and forms to all the baristers and solicitors tn the Law List,
A waak before the lnsugural meating of the Counctl, held in June 1957, I wrots to
Lord Shawcross and éifzred to act as part~-time lémnry of the Soclety for a
remunsration of £500 & year.

Hos, .
My offar was accaptad. and I was, though 2 chatn of events which had sppsared
ot tha time to take no meaning, given the opportuntty of doing the kind of usaful
work I had always wantad to do. I must however put on record that I could not hwe
undartaken it.and carried & out for so many years without tha full support and .
financial sacrifice of my wife, Dorothy, who was & ganior mistrass and latar daputy
haafl of the John Howard School in Hackney, anmely halp trom my brother. wm.

Mamhershtp lubacrlpttom (than £1) came in slowly, By Iuna 1958 we had reoaived
375, My total budqet was £1000 for the first year and usoo far I:ho sacond.
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I had ths service of a typist two half~days a wsak, but for tha most part ]
did all my own typing and dupticeting and dalivarad mambarship notices round the Inns
on Baturday mornings.

Having had no schooling in the politics of tha law, or lndeod‘ in any aspects of Lt,

1 was for & while out of my dapth and relied grsatly on the help and guidanos of Pata
Benason, but all the offticars and €ouncil members ware kind and understanding .

They inbluded such man as Sir John Fostar, Gerald Gardinar, john Arnold, £lwyn Ianes,
Sir &dwin Harbert (latar to becoms Lord Tangsty) and Sir David Caims. I wassuch
ancouragad to lasrn that the last two ware practising Mahodists and knew members

of my mother's family. ’

All the members of d\(i‘ouhsﬁl sat an axampls from which thetr suocnms have

naver dapartad. Thare was no rivalry for offica. When vacancies occumd and
d\ang;;:‘l':ad to be made, the wali-being of JUSTICE has.mlways been the first
consideration. Voting wes a rarity - our dectisions baing guidad by the Quaker sansge :
.of the meeting. ! recall only two divistons on party linas, Thay wers both on
international mattars and resolved by accompromiss. Indsad any aavas-dropper would
have found it difficult to identify party allaglances. The two most radical lew~
reformers wara S8ir John Foster and Geoffroy Howa, whom 1 would much rather have
soén as Lord Chancellor than as Chancalior of the Sxchequer or Foreign Sacretary.

We had only one sartous digagresment and it had nothing to do with politics. Zarly
in 1970 wa had set up & strong and wali-balanced committsa, under the chairmanship
of Peter Wabstar, Q.C. to anquire into & number of matters ralating to the judiciery.
Its draft report strongly arguad the case for the appointment of solicitors to the
Ctreult Banch with prospects of promotion to the High Court Bench, and for academic
iawyars to bs eligible for appointmsnt to the Court of Appeal and tha Iudlcta_l
Committes of the House of Lords. It further urged thz naad for more adaquate .
tralnlnd of judges, the establishment of a judicial staff college, and of a judlclal

: comklulon to combine the functions of an advisory committee for appointmanu A
tribunal to investigats complalints and to consider rammmandauons for the removal
of ludooa.. . et

This provoked & split batwasn the barristers, who regardad the judiciary as their
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spacial prassrva and fealously guardad its independenca, and the solicitors who
felt that they are looked upon as infarior brandiof the profassion.. Whils the dobeta
was in progress, someons who [ was never able to idantify leakad tha matn
recommendations of the report to the Sunday Times, which haadlinad the &
dissansion it had causad and namad Lord Shawcross as its chisf critic. This did

us immeanss harm. We could not dacantly bury the report nor couldwe publish it as &
report endorsad by tha Council. In the and, with some minority dissent, it was
agroed that w2 should publish It as & report for disaussion, but the Sunday Times
lsak had deprived it of any publicity valus and lad to the rasignationsf Lord
Shawcross from the €hairmanship of the Council.

! wasisorry to see him go. We had enjoyed & good working relationship. Without
him JUSTICE wouild not have baan brought to birth and his reputation and flsir for
publicity had put it on the map. He had 2 ganuine concarn for the rights of the
ordinary citizen or, as ha put {t, "the little man®. Hes courageous championship
of the frasdom of the Press brought graat public banafit. He was amphatic in his
xondemnation of 1nng and costly ctvll irtal procadures and in his advoosting of
ethical standards in criminal prosscutions.

It was fortunate for JUSTICE that Lord Gardinar was by than fre2 from the burdens of
offick and agreed to succead him as our Chatrman.




For .tho first two years we wers hsauly involved in the problems of pur than colonial
territorias which I will deal with in a ikter chapter. On tha domestic front we sat
up committaes to l1ook into such matters as contempt of court, legal penalties, the
right of asylum and complaints against the administration. Of thess, the last led
to whatl havs always considarad to be the most tmportant and for~rsaching
achievemeant of JUSTIEE ~ namely ths bringing to birth in Girsat Britain of the
Bcandinavian institution popularly known as the Ombudaman.

It cameé about in this way. Before the war | had writtsn for an obsours left-wing
weakly a humorous erticle sntitied *Wanted - & Ministar of Stupidities®. He was
to bs & man to whom anyone could go with a complaint about tajust or stupid
besssucratic dacisions on ths part of government depastunants or iocsl counciis.

He couid investigata them and hava the power to decree *This is unjust;rkll is
stupid. It cannot ba allowad™. When, therefors, Prof. F.H. Lawson, ths most
aminent constitutional lawysr of the day sant me an articie ha had written about the
8~edish ombudaman, it immediatsly rang a bell. I said to myself : *This is my
Mintstar of Stupidities™ and from that moment I became dadicatad to the reslisation
of the idaa.

Ws assembled a small committes undsr Prof Lawson, and among its members was
Prof } FagGamer, an axpert in administrative law who was latar to becoms the
kingpin of all our subsequant activities in that field. Wa gatherad and studied
_information about the functions and working methods of the ombudsman in Swedsn,
| ba_nmxgrk. Norway and Finland but scon realized that it was bayond our.wry limitad
ruouréu to evaluate it in relation to Britigh scena. Such a study neaded a full-
- tlme direttor, research assistanks and adaquata fundl . 1 had bsen in triendly
- correspondence with Sir John Whyalf; the Ch!af IU-S-'HCE of Sinqnpom. and when
he rawmed he invitad me to have lunch withtin at the 'l'ravellen Club, I told him
about our ombudsman project and he immediately told me that he would ltke to take
it on, '

Our problam was then one of ob&inltiq__thc neoassary funds. 'w'hon'tbo subject hod
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first sppeared on the Councll agenda, Lord Shawcross had written me friandly

not& saying that he did not want JUSTICE to get involived in any hare<brained
schemes. He soon repented of this and bacams an snthusiastic ombudsman admu,
but his instinctive reactions had not bsen far wrong for when he startsd spproaching
charitabia fouddations he found a similar reaction. It was & foreign idea of which
no-one had sver heard. And so we had to tell Sir John Whyatf that the project

wes in absyanca and he went off to Malta on a six months assignment.

In the meantime there had besn soms stirrings of public inbrest. We had arranged
for Prof Stafan Huwitz, the Danish Ombudsman, to give & series of lectures in
Manchastsr, Nottingham , Oxford, Bristol and ths Templs, but apart from in
Nottfagham they were poorly attanded and reported. Louis Blein-Cooper had visited
Prof Hurwite and wrote an srticle for the Observer and the Society for Endizidual
Fresdom started jumping on the bandwagon. Then while Lord Shawcross was still
searching for funds | acquirsd an unaxpectad ally.

- Pr Donald Mackay Johnson, the somawhat scosntric Conservative mamber for

Carlislie, had the misfortune to be poisonsd by some food he had eatsn In & oountry
hotel. His mind had besn temporariiy affactad, hs was shut up Ln 8 mental
hospital and it had taken him three wesks to regain his fresdom. When he startad
complaining about his treatment he found that evan though hs was an M.P., no one
in suthority wes willing to do anything about 1t. He was told about our intersst n
the ombudsman, came to ses me and became a3 firm ally,

Just after Lord Shawcross had givan up hope of obtaining funds, he came into my .
office and 1 told him the bad naws. He suggestad that the only course open to us wa:
to ask the government to undertake an anquiry and we drofted an appropriate

‘question to Harold MacMillan, the then Prime Ministsr, A few days later, Sir

George Coldstream, the then Head of the Lord Chancellor’s Depsriment. telephoned
me. “Mr Bargant”, he satd, "Dr Johnson, the member for Carlisle, has put down a
question to tha Prime Minister asking If the ﬁovemqent will Institute an inquiry

nto the 8wedish Ombudsman idea., Wa know nothing about it hera but I e been

told that you do, Wili-yeu Blanse tell me what 1t's all about?®. I proceaded to
uq:luln_l_'to him that it was & highly regarded Bcandinavian ln_ttu:ution_ for the

lnvestigation of complaints against government departments, that we wers about

R N — = =
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to embark on 8 serious enquiry into it under the direction of 8ir John Whyett.
Mrhough in the courss of a later JUSTICE inguiry into the problem of perjury I had
argued that perjury by cmission couid bs as heinous as positive perjury, I omitted
to tali him that we lackad the necessary funds.

Three days latar thers appsarad In Hansard g among the written enswers to Prime
Mintister's quastions : “In th raply to the question saked by the Hon Member for
Carlisle, | am informed that JUSTICE, the British Ssotion of the International
Commission, is about to undertake an enquiry {ato this institution and the
government thinks it sansible to await its report®. With these faw lines, Lord -
8hawcross was abla to go back to some of the foundations which had previously
refusad him and say "Plasse ~ we must have some monsy - the government s
waiting for the result of our ianquiry”. He was given £2,500 sach by the Wolfson and
Naville Blend Foundations snd sarly in 1960 Sir John Whyatt returned from Maita.

He proved to ba the ideal cholos for the assigamant. He combinad a ssarching

mind with great "parsonal and intsllectual intagrity and was nevar tempted to ignore
nnpelatabh!acts and opintons. He had » highly trained American Sscrstary and

two resesrch assistants who analysed a thousand or more Parliamentary questions
and saswars and were given acosss to M,.P,'s complaints files. He visited all the
Scendinavian Gmbudsmen and obtained confidential memorande from ths Pamanant
Secretary, of Btate of all the main dapartments.

H:_ *:? glven a small Advisory Committss compossd of Lord Shawcross, Sir Bydney
Catmns, Director of the London Schoo! of Economics and Dr H.W.R. Wada, Fellow
of Trinity College, Cambridge and a member of the Council on Tribunals. Whesn
Lord Shawcross was latsr appointad to the Commission of Inquiry into Events (n
Nyasaland, Norman Marﬁh took over the Chalrmanship and Lord Devlin attanded

‘some maetings by invitation.

It svon becekoa apparsnt that the Committes would have to ovarcoms three mjor
objactlor“l to & British ombudsman : ' ‘ ' '

.'ﬁ)—' o '..;t w’ou_ld underg:lne the constitutional doctrine of mht_n_i's' terial. responsibllity




2) Members of Parliamant ware jealous of their right to take up their
constituents’ grievanoes and would not want it to be interferad with
K
(3) Thers was all the diffsrence betwsen a country a population of § milllon

and one with 50 miilion. A Fritish Ombudsman would bo swampad with
complaints.

The first objaction was sasily overcome. it had not prewantad Naow Bealand, which
had & simUlar constitution, foem appointing its Ombudsman.

Tha two other objections proved for & time to be intractbbie. The Commitiss spent -
sany hours discussing them until, as if out of the blus, there dropped on the table

a solution which killed two birds with ons stons. This was that a constituasd
should first iake his complatnt to his M,.P. who could ba asked to refsr it to the
Ombudsman 1f hs failed to obtain satisfaction.

This denial of the right of direct access, which came to be known as the Parilamentsry
filtes, becama the subject of souts controversy whan ths Whyott Raport was _
published, and has b2an avar sincs. Some M.P.s are good constituency members and
toke up every legitimate grievanca that is brought to them. Others are lasy and leave
their conatituancy corraspondencs to thaoir sscretaries. Many are ministers and their
constituents lack confidence in them. Thay can go to sny M.P, but it is 8 convention
that M.P.s should not trespass on each others territories.

Tha objections are resi but I heva aiways taken the view that without the Parliamentar:
flitre & Brltlth Ombudsman wouid nevaer have basn appointad., Tha third Onbudlnan.
8ir 3*“" Pugh, soon bacame conscious of the way in which the denisl of dl.raat
access was lessening his sffactivenaas and devized a sensible mmiu wheroby,
if he recelvad a complaint from a membar of tha public, he would ask ths M, P.'s
permlnlon to invastigats it, ' N

The .!dvt:ory Comn:lttoe had other difficult pmblams to rasolvo for mmpla by
what criteria lhould hb—adjudteatc on the merits of the decisions he was asked to

lnvnttqnu. In 80 far as tha civil ssrvics was willing to aooapt him: as 3 nacassary
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restriction on its freedom, it was smphatic that he should only report on acts of
maladministration and not be aliowed to comment on the merits of s dacislon, is.
to say that it was unjust or oppressive. This was a far cry from my Minister of
Stupidities and from the power granted to the New Zsaland Ombudsman to declare
that & decision was wrong. The Committss siso conosded on grounda of
sxpedisncy that the ombudsman should have no power to deal with matters that
were justifieble in the cows or were concernad with the administretion of criminal
justice and that he should not bs able to requ ire the disclosure of intamal civil
ssrvice notas and memoranda. The last important recommendation was that the
ombudsman should ba the ssrvant of Parliament, by stylad “The Parliamantery
Commissioner for Administration with powars comparabla to those of the Controlier
and Auditor- General and submit periodic reports to Parliament®.

-

The Committes also recommanded that the Council on Tribunals ahould be smpowared
to survey the arsa of discretionasy decisions not covered by tribunels and that »
Genaral Tribunal should b sstablished to dssl with sppeals from = miscelianeocus
decisions not coversd by specialized tribunals. Thess recommendations have aot
besn implamentad.

The report, which was antitied “The Citizen and the Administration ;: The Redress of
Grievanocas" was published in October 1961, The praparation for its coverags by the
Presa and Tslevision and Radio were unfortunately upsst by an sccidental lsak of
its contents, but it nevertheless received wide publicity and editorial comment.

In the years that followed innumerable books and articies ware published about the
institution both hers and sbroad. In 1965 Prof Donald Rowat of Carleton University ,
Ottawa, publishad a book called : "The Ombudsman® which carried 28 artlcles
describing and discussing the merlts of complaints in other countries, many of them
in relation to the Whyatt proposals. The bibliography lists about 150 books and
artlcle_a'on the ombudsman thems.

In Novamher 19'62 the govemment turned down all the recommandationl bf the Whyatt
Raport !or Tessons which the Times and the Economist delcrlhed as disputable and
thlm and wlthout nllnwlng Parlllmtnt to discuss them. !n antlolpatmn of sucha
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discussion, we had prspared and addressed a letter and memotandum to every M. P.
rebutting the various criticisms that had been made. By accident and not by design
thess ware postad on the day the government mada its statement and provided an
sffactive answer to it.

Early in 1964, Gerald Gardiner went © the House of Lords in anticipation that {f a
Labour Government wars returnad at the forthcoming Ganarsi Eleotion, he would be

owus

madas Lord Chanosllor. snd-this-enpeetetiepwestestized, He had suggested that
tt would be a useful exarcise to reassembis the Whyatt Committss, re-appratse its

proposals in the light of the obilections that hsd bsen made of 1t and dreft 8 'am. -
This was duly done and a further explanatory memorandum was prapared and

sent to sslected M.P.s,. In the maantime there had besn s staady flow of enguirias
and visits by lawyers from many Commonwsaith countriss.

The incoming Labour Government had announoced its intention to introduce an
Onh:dmanwt it was not mentioned in its manifesto or in the Queeds Spesch,
bt Wa ware assured that it had oot bsen shalved and in our Tenth Annual Report,
published tr: Juns 1967, wa note with satisfaction that 8ir Edeaund Compton had been
appointad the first British Ombudsmesn. The Act, which somewhst strangely was
passed after his appointment, was in many ways mors restrictive than we hed
wantad it to ba, so much so that ten years later we published & report sntitied

POur Fettered Ombudsman® in which wa urged that :

{a} The tarm “maladmintistration® should be replaced by "unrsasonable, unjust
or oppressive action®. Richard Crossman , whea introducing the Bill in
Parllament, had promised that ‘maladministration’ would ba {ntsrpreted in
that spirit, but this promise has not bean fulfilled.

(b} The @ommissioner should be empowerad to undertake lnvelthatlms on his
own tnitiative and to suggast changes In leqislatlon }kdapartmcntnl '
practices,

@ .. There should ba direct accsss to the cm_lulbngr._"




(d) His jurisdiction should be sxtended to cover commercial transattions of
government departments, peraocnnel matters relsting to service under ths
Crown, and tha sotimms of overseas consular offiocers.

(o) Detatbed persons should be able to sand unocansored letters to the
Commissioner.
[{J] There should be more publicity for the Commissioner's work.

Our report was refamrad to the Selact Committes on the Parllamentsry Commissioner
which had bean sat up in ? and-W5 gave oral evidancs to it, and it sndorsed
a oumber of our recommendations, but the only coacession mads by the government

was in respact of consular offices.

O mibpadnn,
Ws had alsp urged that the Gommlssionar should not always :.“ a.eglvll servant
with his staff oompoud.:&lol cdvtl nmnu and wars by the
~ appointment of Cecil Clothler, Q. c. au Sonndtnwtan Ombudsmen had slways
basn lawyers - the Danish Ombudmnn , Prof Hurwitz, was b distinguishsd lawyar
and his staff consistsd of young lawyers with no inkullt loyaity to the Zstablishment.
Wa had envisagad a wall-known lawyar or Parliementarian who would bacoma a
father figure , but ths Government had other idsas and justified its appointment of
Sir DRSAX Laslis Compton snd his two suocessors on the grounds that only & otvil
servant could know the tricks of his profession. Sir Alan Matne snd Sir Saest

= "Pugh both widensd the horizons of the office but nowhers nesr tha same sxtent as had

‘ Sir Guy Powslls, the New Zealand Ombudsman ,in whoss raports appesred such
commants as *] raceived a compleint about X, It was outside my jurisdiction but
T thought 1t right to have a word with the Ministar concemad®.

In November 1969, JUSTICE published a report of a committes chatred by Prof. J.F.
Garner antitled "The Cittzen and his Councii®. It racommendad the appointment of

® number of commissioners for locel administration who would each sarvide & reglon

~ but be stationed in one central office so that thete work could ba co-ordinated and
have clola llnlu with the Parlismentary Commissioners and tha Counctl on Tribunall.
The govemont did not rupond until early tn 1972 when tt publuhld 2 Whm Papar
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outlining its own proposals and inviting commant. Thess diffared from ours {n
that they providad for thres regiona! Commissioners stationed in thair regions
with & Chief Commissionsr stationed in Londonr and country to sur recommendation
laid down that complaints had to bs made through a Council msmbser. The
Commission was sventually established i1 1974 and its major weaknass, which
JUSTICE has tried in vain to remady, is that avan after two condemnatory reports
it has no power to order a Council to make reparstion for any loas or demage
sufferad by the complainant,

Then followed the sppointment of a Commissioner for the National Health Service  _
and for central and local governmant tn Northern Ireland and it is now slmost |
commonplacs to hesr of demands for sn ombudsman in arses where disputss with
goveriing bodiss or-ospimste interwets wre-ithelip4o ariss. More significant

still howaver ts ths extant to which, through the advooacy of Prof Stafen Hurwite and
8ir Guy Pewets , and of the Inornational Commission of Jurists through its Review
and international conferences, the ombudaman principie has become rsocognised

~ throughout the Commonwaalth as sn essantial tnstrument of defence for the ordinary
oitizan againet the insvitable growth of arbitrary governmental powor.'_ As T write
thers are ambudsmen with varylng jurisdictions in New Zealand, Austrslie, Canada,
India, Tenzania, Mauritius, Pijl and Zambls.




——
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Vary faw months had passad after the birth of JUSTICE befors we were askad to
intervene in & number of what were then sus coloaial territories, Our first Anmual
Raport, published in June, 1988, records that we had reczived and investigatad
complaints from Northem Rhodesia, Cyprus, Singapors and the Seychellss and taken

what we considarad appropriate action.

The Seychsiles prasented us with an intractabie problem. The first complaints were .
about the lack of legal 2id and dalays in bringing cases to trial. Thess wers foliowed
by complaints about tha administration of justtce in gensral. The Chisf Justiocs was
M.D.Lyon, s fomer Somersat crickater, and according to reports wexeosived from

a ratired English lawysr, he was oonsluantlyg‘v;ne for drink and his judgments in
both civil and criminal casas wera far too frequantly overturned by the Zast Afrioen
Court of Appeal. - "

The real troubla in the islands was that Juy ware effactively ruied by a few French
creple families who ownad all the coconut plantations and whoss *Girande

Madame®” saamed to have the powar to szduce all the gorvanu of the Crown from
their alleglance o it. Tho resident %nglican Canon was enough to
denounce hs poverty and {njustice in the Islands and ywl;s___racallod to England.

We mads strong reprasantstions to the Colonisl office Mmafm the

departure of M.D.Lyon but we then learned that alboanl Q.C. ., & crony of the

Madamse, was liksly to succesd him. Lord Shawcross and 1 went togather to the
Foreign Office and argued tn-rain with the Parmanant Semtary of Stats sbout the
widdom of sudl en appointment, but wers latar told that no bottor quallﬂad parson

was willing to accapt it. This was not true. Some ysars later I was told by & judge

of the East African Court of Appesl that he had ncommmdad an exoanent man who was
willing to acocept tha appolntment. About the same time I mat Hllda 8alwyn Clnrk.
whou husband had basn sent to the Seychelles as Govamor hy the Labour Government
but had atayod thara !or funly o short time, 1 a-kad bor abnut tho -ltuatton as they

had !ound it and hor raply was tarse and llluminaunq t "nu only aolutlnn. Tom, is to
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transport all tha native inhablitants to the mainland and leavs the French familles
to pick their own bloody coconuts”.

Qur intarvantions in Northern Rhodesia wars more frultful and lad toa dramatic
- lagal confrontation with the Colonial office. During the strikes and unrast on the

Copper Bait in Septambaer 1956, 56 méne workers wara arrested and put into a

datention comp. After six weeks, a ratirad South African Judge want up to

Lusaka and succassfully appliad for & writ -of Habsas Corpus on tha grounds that

ths Zmergency Raguiations then in forcs did not permit tha Governor to dalegata

tha powar to make datantion ordars to ths Provincial Commiasioner, Their freadom -

was short lived becausa they wera promptly re-arrastad and rusttbsted to the

far corners of tha territory, Thewcasas wers med from time to time, but in

A January 1959, 20 of them ware still rusticatad and unabla to eern & living.

After ropaatad raprzsentations on thair bshalf had failed, wa decidad to sxplore
'the possibility of applying to the Divisional Court of the Quean's Banch in London
for a writ of Habeas Corpus. The exarciss was master-mindad by Prof.Gerald
Drapar and Bryan Anns, a young barristar who & few months sarlier had come int.o
my room and asked {f thare was anything he could do to help JUSTIEE. They had
discoverad that the Emergency Regulationsof Northarn Rhodasis wera in all
:Smbability tliagal in that thay had not baan published in the London Gazetts because
they ware the same as those that had baen draftad for uss in the United Kngdom in
tiu svent of war, They had also unsarthed a long-forgotten obitar of 8 judﬁoot the
Dlvislonal Court to the affect that a writ of habeas corpus could run je a protectorata)
which Worthern Rhodasia then was.

So an Anvave wag accordinqu daspatched there to seek out a suitable candidats,
prepars affidavits covering his earlier detsntion and obtein his instmictions to apply
for a wnt on. hls behalf He achiaved this daspite various obstaclas that wara put in
hls war and h!s cholecs was Andrew Mwenya, -

The applicatlon wal taken by Nall Lawson, Q. C. aftar consultations with Gerald

B % Gardinar -"-81: John Foster andSir David Caima. T}m Attomey-Gaperal Slr Ragtnald

Mﬂnnlmhaﬁ;nullar, appurad for the Boa-etary o! Stato ﬁor tho Colonlu and tools a
pmllminary and unexpaoted objaction that an Bnglith Court had no jurisdiction to hear

- ; - ]
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the application as Northern Rhodssia was technically o foreign country. Lord
Parker, who was sitting with tww other formar Treasury Counssl, acoeptad thie
argument and dismissad the spplication, with a judgmaat that can at best be
describad as obscure. This was not surprising becausa tn an addrass to the

Annual Meating of JUBSTICE in June 1960 he described the judiciary as the hand-
maider of the administration. The appliostion had produced parnic in tha Colonial
office bacausz, unbeknown toms at the time, the whola court system in Northern
Rhodasia and ths Emargancy Regulations in Nyssaiand whare sarious troubls had
broken out, wersz thraatened. It was thought by soms to be 2 commuaist conspiracy.

Our Counsal and loucliors had all actad prodao and Cahon Collins, of Christian
Action, offerad to finance an appaal to tha Court of Appeal. Thimwas eéntrusted

to Sir john Foster who arguad it superbly. Ths Court, which consisted of

Lord £vershad, Romar L.J. and 3salisrsh’f., was made of sterner stuff than the
Divisional Court. Just before tha lunch adjournment, Lord Evarshaad resd out a
passaga of Lord Parker's judgment which inciuded s passags about 'ﬂa#uudo
of abaoluts powar' and said to the Attnmoy-Gencml “Nons of us can understand
 this - parhaps you will sxplain it to us aftar the adjournment”. This he lamentably
failad to do. The Court resarvad judgmant until after the summar vacetion whin it
unanimously allwad the appeal with judgmants of great constitutional importance.
Sollers, L.J, said that the taat of whather a writ could run to a counlry nonnlly
outstda the jurlsdicttnn of the English courts was its degres of subjaction to the
Bng-llsh Crown and a court of law could not daprive a subjact of his right to
prqtodtlon evan though tt might be politically inconvaniant or hazardous to uphold it.

The court then adjourned for threediays to allow tha Grawn tims to dacide whothor
it mtod to appeal to the Lords, Whan it raasumhled Counsel for ths Gonmor
of Rhodeala appaand and told thelr Lordships that all the rustlcated persons had
been relnsad on the previous day. Ths Attorney-General then xpla and said the t.
althauqh wclma the dacision, he ragretted that he had bcan daprivod nf the
opportunity of arguing the matter in another place. _‘rn this Lord ivershed ramarkcd
(to his obvioul dlscmntortuu]'?arhapl , Mr Attorney, tha Govamer had this in mind
‘when ho ordcred thuo man s raleau . ‘rhecmeriu of tha cala wera ‘thus naver -
ﬁ;ctdod but ws had galnod our oblaotiw and had no wuh t tmbnypu the

outhnrmu any further,
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After tha victory, we held a calsbration dinnsr in Scho, for which I composad an
irrevarant ode ;-

Ode to Mweanya i3y,

Said lords Lvarshed, Romer and Callers,
“Thesa zgtablishmantarian fallars

in the Court down bealow

Have daalt such a blow

To British Protactorats dwallars

In Northarn Rhodasia and Kenya

And espacilally poor Andrew Mweanya
That Manningham-Bullsr

With pride growing fullsr

Must be shrunk to a stature far taznier.

To plead before Slade, Winne and Parker
With the brazan aplomb of a barker

That the writ dvas not run

To the lands where the sun

Naevar gets is a dead »ven darker

Than casting unworthy asparsinns
On Devlin's judicial diversions.
The writ Habsas Corpus,

You stigpl-propetes Jrel-rh ot |-1

"'Was designed to dafoat ali coarclons!

- Andrew Mwenya's appeal shall ba grantad.
Their Lordships relentisssiy chantad.
An appeal to the Lords?
You can only cross swords
With youtulf now ths qaolcr‘a reonnted. :

A Cim ‘*.:1‘. Lo
A
R

- 8o IUBTEB omemcd as the winner
‘With the Treasury purse slightly thinnar
And this bold legal capsr, :

The brain-child of Draper,
valdlng an excallant dtnner.

l o
The refarence to Lord Devltn was promptad by his iorthnqht crltlcum as Chaiman ,
of tha Inquiry Commiulon thto Fvents in Nyasgaland, of the way in whlch the emewoncy
lttuatton had baan hhndlad. 'This had ambaﬁssad the govamment ang it was wldaly _

g -
huavnd that 1t had' prajudlcpd e chances of belnq mada h:d Chiaf Iustloe. |
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The laaders of tha .. es— in Nyasaland and Sputharn Rhodesia ward datal’fed

in 3alisbury and in dua coursa a tribunal prasided ova:‘Mr Justice Bastle was
sat up to haar applications for relsase and with the halp of Christian Action

we ssnt out counsel from Loandon to appear on their behalf. Thlt brought about
my first ancountar with Johhus Nkomo and the vanity which bm%t his
undoing. Reports reached ma from Salisbury that a wholly weswJabl  counssi
had arrived from London and was doing more ham than good., Wa discoverad
that he had bsan sent out by Joshua Nkomo and when Canon Collins and 1 asked
him why ha had done this without consulting us he rapliad "I hava to show my
people that ! am looking after them”,

During thosa aarly yeare the activities of JUSTICE in Central and Sast Afrioa
conaistad mainly of arranging for the dafanca of Afiocs: detainses afther by
sending out counsel from London or encouraging local lawyers and obtaining funds.

_Wo carriad out a survay of legal aid provisions. Two officers of JUSTICK undar~

took axtensive tours., Wea formad ‘B}a'néhas in Kenya, Uganda, Tanzania and _
Northern Rhodaesia and enrolled a group of 20 mambars of the Salisbury Bar

gradually maltad away aftar Ian Smith's Unilateral Declaration of indppandencs,

To our great ragrct‘all our colonial branchas eventuslly dissolved as the tarritories
obtainad indapaﬁdoncc. They could hava bacome nationsl sections of tha Intenmatior
national Gminlon but the politica]l ciimatas madc it inpoutbu for them to satisfy
lt_g all-pnr__q rogulroqants.

1 made my own tour of African countries in 1964 when I was invited to attend the
Zambia Indepandenqa ealabrations. The day befors thay andad naws rsachad us that
ths government in Bblisbunr was about to sxacuts by hanging a group of Africans

who had baan conv(ctbd af patrol bomb offences. 1 axprassad my concermn about

this to a Lusaka lpwyernhd through & friend {n Salisbury he srranged for me to go
thara on the folww!né molning and be receivad by lan Smith and harAner Burke,

the then Ministey ofl atl .~ When I arrived I learned that lan Smlth had called -

& special tuslén of ﬂaru mant to. reply to. what ha descﬂbed as an ultimatum he had

racaivod tmm/ﬁarold \&lllso\s\ I was abla to atmnd u and lu mde such a
Y i L : 3o LT
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frightentngly dafiant spsech that I falt my mission was doomad to fallure. I was
Bowever allowad to see Lavcne Burks for an hour belore lunch. He was very
courtaous hutJI falt as I hava rarely falt that I was in tha prasance of evil, 1
forwarded every argument I could think of why {t would be wrong and bad policy to
hang thase men. M is only defonce was that he was following the axample set by the
Kitish. I ended the interview by urging him to snquire into aliegations of brutality
against his police. I had baen told it was common practica for.'w’hlto officark to send hi:
his black sergeant into the bush to baat up & suspact befora arrasting him and then

to deny any knowledge of this whan the man appearad in Gourt. [ later saw the
Attornsy~General end rapeated my plea. 1 was nevar able to find out to what axtent -
my intsrvantion contributed to the governmant’s decision to postpone the hangings

but it is & matter of racord that nons took place untll some ysars later, after the
fatlure of appeals to ths Privy Council.

I took aduntaﬁe of my subsaequant tour of Sast and Ceantral Africa to promota the
Ombudsman idea. It had bean ganerally acceptad that the Institution could only

function in a dsmocratic framework but the S sdish Chalmman of our Kenya branch,

pointed out that it was born at the tims of an absoluts mon&rchy to enable the King

to be kept informad of any avil~doing on the part of the minlstars. It appaarsd to me the:
that an Ombudsman could parformas similar function for a government that was over-
sansitive to hostlle criticism and I wrots an articie for tha East African Standard.

At ahout this time, Prosident Nyare of Tsnzania was satting up 8 Commission of

Inqulry into & fne~party $tate. I lobbied a mamber of JUSTICE who had baen appointed
w£%amuch gratifiad whan i;rammmzndad the setting~up of an Ombudsman
Commission with wids power., A!ts first chalrman was @ magnificant tribal chief c%“{
s raportn mada fascinating reading, He describad how when he was making LY

tour of country towns and villagas, local officials would do their best to stop
oomplalngn«s £can coming to ses him, Ha overcams this by standing In the market
squere, announblng who he was and why he had come, and lnvitlnq anyons with a

crlevanca to coms Into his hut and talk to him.
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Barly In 1962 we mada a sucosssful tntarvention on behalf of the S8ecretary of

our jamaican branch, Peter Evans. He was an Irish mamber of the £nglish Bar

who had gone to practise Ln Kanya and made himsaif m—parlma’ﬁ;;;u by

ansisting in the defenocs of Io‘b Keayatts. He decided to move to Jamstics whare he
estabi{shed a strong branch of JUSTICL, the Ragistrer of the High Coart and the
Solicitor-General being among its members. He wa 5 a faarlass advooate and
tnevitably becama a thom in the flash of the authoritias by his axposures of police
brutality and mailpractios, both in court and in 8 weekly column he wrote for Tha
Jamaican Gleanar. In the autumn of 1961 | received & plaading letter from his

Jamaican Becretary tailing me that h2 had bsan arrestad and was being put on triat -
on 2 charge of conspiring to &ffact a public mischief, He had defendad »

coloured American who was convicted and sentanced to death for the murder of &
Chinese grocer. Shortly before the data fixed for the axecution the man's sister MEOGIM

" arrived in Kingston , farretad in the undarworld and cama and told Pater Evans that

according to thraa girls she had talkad to in 2 brothel, her brother had been there

throughout the night of the murder.

Ha asked them to come to his office and make statsments. Two of tham did so and
aftar they had baan properly sworn bafore the Ragistrar of the Suprcmb Court, he
sant tham to the Governor for invastigation and ragquasted a reprisve, l'hll was

no more than any ulponiible lawyer would have done in simllar circumstances,
The third girl, who was in charge of tha brothel, told the police about the
anqulries. The other two girls were interviewasd and under prassure sald that their
statements word false and that thay had not made t!mn. Dasplte ﬂm dapoll‘tl.on-
of the Regisirar that the stataments had baen read to them, Petar Evans was com~
mitud for trial. | ‘ '

Hoe appealad for help to the Counctl o JUSTICE and John Hohnon Q.GC, offorad N
to go ‘out and defand him. He was acquittad on the jnaln charqu but to lut dlmay
was fouad guuty of a minor charge of lnctting tha tlﬁrd girl t.o conspire and
untenoad to nine months Imprisonment, He immed;’atew appealad but he was

rofuud ball until May. when two Q.C.'s from ntl hbm:rtnc lslanda appﬁlmd f°l' __
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Court of Appeal could not be haard untii July when at his suggestgun! weas abls to
parsuada Donald Mclntyre Q.C. to go out and reprasant him at very short notice. Y
The Court allowad ths appaal and quastioned the conviction, wholly rejacting the
Crown's suggestion that he had fabricatad false information and explicitly
exonarating him from any motive to do 'n_:ore than his profassional duty raquired of
bim. Thera was much rejoicing in Jamaica and favourabla mepercussions throughout
the Caribbean, but Patar Evann’profaul}onal capear wa's sffectively shattared. He
raturned to London with his secratary, who acted as my secratary for two years,
He latar marriad her and went off to live in Fraance, whaere my wife and I visit him

every year.

The gradual transformation of Empire intc Commonwealth had involved tha drifting

of sonstitutions with effactive safaguards for the riéhti of minorities and the

!ndcpendencc of the courts. Pmlmlorly in Africa the spnstitution makers had
ovcruttmeted the capacity of s new mlers to acoapt tnd oparate the British

“Parliamentary system without prior training and participanon {n the prooessss of

qnvommont. They neaded to astabliish their new authafity and to make sweeping
changu. and this meant that they bacama intolarant of the kind of opposition that
i roqudad a8 bbrmal in countries with a long tradition of Parliamsntary govam-~
ment. Mt In varying dagraas thay hava now becoma e-party statasn,

This d&ngar had bean to some axtant (orasaen and wu dlscussad at the first major
world congrass of the IntamatiomlComm!sleh:fTQt New Delh! in Ianuary 1959,
We had baen given gensrous grants by the Poreign Ofﬁca and British @ouncil to
assist the sttandance of Commongaalth parttolpants and to sand a powerful antuh
delequtlon which included Lord Benny rd Dovun. Lord Gardiner, Lord Elwyn~-
Ionu. and Sir David Galrns.

I havo alwaya been a ﬂrm baliavar ln tht importanca and influence of the Common!-

wcalth in world affa!rs and tomrdl tho and of the congress I was allowad to arrange
ﬁor I-ord Denng to addrass a meeting of all the Commonwaal!h partlctpants. In the
ooursi ot hl: spaooh he luggutad tbat tho Iudlclal Commltbo of the Privy Counetl
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should be tensformad intp a truly represantative Court of the Commonwealth with
paripatatic juﬂidtctlon. On our return to England ws put the idea to the Lord
Chancelior and the Commonwealth Office but they wouid have none of it. We
wers told that thetr Lordships had no wish to becoms paripatatic. Wa montinued
to pursua the thema and made submissions to & succass:ian of Commonwsalth
Prime Ministars and Law O!ﬁcara’oonferancn that they should considar the
possibility of drawing up a Commonwealth Convention of Human Ri'g::-ts to be
sdministerad py a Commonweaith Court, This was rejactad and we put forward »
modified proposal that tha Gourt should ba astablished and that ln;lvldual
countrias should be tavitad to accept its jurisdiction in ltmited areas of thelr own
choosing. This cama to nothing and skahe end we had to sattle for a Lagal Branch
of the Commonwealth Sscratariat. Tom Kellock, Q.C. a member of our Gouncil
whos2 sigorous advocacy had been largaly rasponsibla for its setting up, bscame

-).-n-k
its first dacratary. It provides » valuable agsncy for the collection and clroulation
porsy L m:--.-!’w._‘ Crame wieatl bave Comforamcet, b ¥

of information on lagal devalopmants in the Commonwsalth bet falls a long wly short
of our original aims a9

A B Ak e
v e o E

Throughout our campaign wa consistently urged that after the nomrchy,"’tha common
law with its respact for human rights was th2 most powerful binding foroe in the life
of tha Commonwaalth and should ba givan institutional axprnulon. The hrothorhood
of Camnonwoalth lawyars is still a reality but successive withdrawals from the .

B lurlidtctlon of ths Privy Couhcll have left tham without any offactlva stam:ludl or

palnt of reteranco.

-
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I was fraquantly askad about tha objaots of JUSTICE and how it sat about achiaving
thom. They aru sat out in tha praambls to tis constitutioa and ars wide~ranging.
The two which cover domastic mattars read as {oliows : -
*To uphold and strangthzn th2 principlas of the Rula of Law ir ths
tﬂtltﬁrieé for which the British Parliamoent 1z dlractly or ultimstaly
responsibia; In porticular to assist ir tha malntengncs of the highast
standards of administration of justics and (n tha presarvation of tha
fundam 2nital libarties of tha Individual,”

“To kaap undar ravisw al]l aspacts of tha Ruie of Law and to publish
such matarial as - {1l by of assigtancs to lawysrs in strangthaning it.*

The praamble alao lays down that 8 fair r2prasantacion of the main political parties
bas maiatatnad on tha Council in parpatuity,

Our method of working was to salact an -arza of the law {n vhich injustice cauid too
easily arise and to appoint & committes to study # end racammand appropriste reforms.
Wse did our bast to snsure that committass wars politically and profassionally
belancad, which meant tha: they had no axas to grind aad thoir rapacts commanded
ru;;oct. Whansvar it was appropriats, we tnvitad lay exparts tn ths subdject o foin
the mltu'a. This proved to be of immansa valua, not only becausa of thelr
knowladgs of the social affacts of ths particular law undar discussion, but aiso
bacsusas thay could s2e dafacts in 1t t5 which tha lawyars had basr blind, Having
coms to my task without any inbullt reverance for the law and (ts lnstltutloni. 1 was
often able to rander cur committess 2 similar sarvice, ' '

The oriterls we graguaily evolvad wars that : -
(a) The subjact was within our resourcas
(b) No other rssponsible body was working on it

(o) Bacause of tha composition of our committeas we could producs an
suthoritativa raport -

{d) Thars was some prospect of achtevlng the desirad refoml within 8
rouonahlo time,
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In ths sarly years thers was a wide fleld of chotcs. Thers were few bodies engaged

in law reform and thosa that wera tanded to havs a sactional or profassionsl axs

to grind. Wa could kesp track of what was going on. But sincs than the situation

has changed dramatically. The srses of the law which have come under eriticism and
scrutiny hese {ncrasssd tonfold as have tha bodias who have antarad on the law-reform
srana, 3o that as the yaars went by it bacams increasingly difficult to find subjects
vwhich satisfiad our criterla and to kaep abraast of currant activitias, Furthermors,

tha Parliamentary tima-tabls bacame so orowdad that a3van when the recommeddadions
of our raports wara widaly accsptad, the govarnmant of the day could find no time for

tham unlass 1t bad reasons of its own for wanting tham enacted,

For ths banafit of lay readars | should perhaps axplain at this point that we wers _ -
restrictad by our objects to procadural law raform, othervigs known as lawysrs’ law
reform. This covers such maitars 8s the falmeas of trials, rights of appaal, rules of
#videncs . access to tha courts, lagal aid and ganeral safaguards for the individusl
against being mada & victim of injustica. For obvious rsasons »3 have kapt sut of the
araas of substantiva and social law, such as divorca, obsaaity, homosexuaitty,
santencing and caplital pualshment, which are the subjsct of daeply hald religious,
ethical and politicsl convictions. )

Deapite this Hmitation, tha 25th Annual Raport of JUSTICE shows that it lndmm proguce
ovear fifty ploneering reports covaring most aspects of civil, ariminal and sdministrative
law. Th2 librarian of Anglia Univarsity whom we allowad to go through our files
unaarthed naarly 100 mamoranda wa had submittad to Royal Commissions, toﬁm_ant
MIms aod the Law Commission. Of thase ! can mentior only those which have
bome frutt or are of continuing importanca, '

Our firat report was on contempt of court, of which thers ara thra2 kinds: refusing to .
obay the order of a court,' which Is a civil offanga, contampt in tha fat'_bt of the court ";-
and publication of matarial which scandelizes a judge or prajudices th,s fairmess of a
trisl, ‘Ths last two are criminal offences. When our committea was set up, thers
wos 8 right of appaal in civil contampt but not in crlmlna'llcm_‘.temﬁt. ‘An exssparated

litigant who refussd to sit down whan ordarad to hy the ;udca.or. as has happansd,

!

oy




thraw 2 book ot him, could be aent to prison by the seme fudga for an unlimited time

or until iu mads an acosptabis apolbqy,:wtthuut having any right of appsal,

Subsequsnt legislation provided a rlcht' of sppeal and also leid down the procesdings for
coatsmpt of court could not be started without the consent of tha Alttornay~Genarai,

A cué riaultlnq in imprtscnment for contampt gove m3 a rara iasight inio the tnnats
kindoess of Lord CGardinar, Shortly after hs becama Lord Chanceilor I was summoned to
90 and sve him, Ha grested me warmly, invited nie o sit down and without more ado
seid. “lem, I believe that | am still » good member of JUSTICZ". 1 sssured bim that he
wos. “Thatmeans, | supposa, :hat it's quite in order for me to give you a donstion”,

1 told him that I couid ses no objsction and he handed mae & chaqua for £50., “Now ,*
he sdld, "1 can tail you why I bava asked you 10 come end ses m=. Cne of my duties
&s Lord Chancellor ts to kesp under review sveryons who has sarved an everiay seatsnce
for contempt of court. One of them {s & men called Denmislusty. Be refused o pay the
domages awarded against him for ithailing & solicitor whom hs had scousad of latting
bim down,and hes bos rafussd to dlscm;a whara his ossats are hiddan, He is an
obstinsts man snd it looks as mﬁ,ﬁm could be facing a iife santenca. Do you thisk
you could find & good solicttor and gst ktm out? .

-

I duiy gave the £50 1o Philtp lg:‘abar. & mambar of my -Counoil who was a master~
tactician and ailways wuung_;fo advise or assist distressed itcigants. He anlistad the
halp of the 1ste Mr Justics Boan, who was then the Chairman of our Liverpool !nailh.
—. An honourable compromise ‘was ramched and'bmsltmty was fraed,

Cur next report was on the naad fnri mval_ucu'on of h;qal penaltios, Thars was s
widaspraad fasling that for-;h__luor-lcal ra'as_o:ns:,. offencss against public ordar and privets
proparty oarrisd far higher maximum mntanbaip than offances ageinst the parson,
partioularly saxual and cruelty offences against chtlﬁran and young persons. The work of
this committes brought Into the tnnar cnunuis of IUS?;C:‘.’ & city solicitor, Geoffrey
Garratt, who was t b:cogn,é@ towar of stra_r;'_éth to us _a}nd was Chalman of the Executive
Committes for five yo_au,_prtbr to his ratlrcmcjmt. Ma had no e'xpar_lancl of tha crimina}
law but he want off withl ,l:,copy of Arahbolcl_ and came back s week latar with all the
known ;_a-lmlnul ot&nui; omlfrad and cleu'lﬂ:._ad under two ssparate headings - uw_r!ty
nce and type of offance,

of sa
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Thasa tiblea gave ths commitiee 8 faotus] basie for {ts recommendations that there
should ba 2 wide-ranging re~appratsal of the penaities thet had basn considered
*ppropriata in Yiotorian times. An sxampie that hit the hesdlines when the report

was publishsd wes that tha maximum penalty for abducting » woman with intent on her
virtia was 2 ysars, but for abducting en heirass with Intent on her fortuna was 14 years.
Thera havs sinca basn Soma minor inorsasas (o the penaities for ssxual offences

against young persons, but tha genersl public gontinues to be outraged from time to timo
by the lanisncy of tha santancss passed on baby battarers and child molesters in
comparison with thosa puuld on robbers who have dons no-one any physioal or
psychological hamm, . .

Bhortly befors har death tn 1958, Miss Martjsry Fry wrom to Lord Bhawcross asking him
{f JUSTICE would carry on her crusads for a schame to gompensats victims of erimes of
violance. He wrots & lettar to the Times which revealed considerabie ali-party suppeort
and R.A, Butier, ths than Home -Sscmetary, agresd to receive s dsputation from JUSTICE,
ths Magistratas® Associstion and the Howard Lesgus. He yave us no ancouregement but
cqrnd 1o set up an intardspartmental working party to look into the probism and report

| to hnn The report, pubiishad tn June 1961, discusssd some of tha practical probisms of
sattiag up a schame, [t proposals ware ceutious and inconclusive, but it stimulatad
public interast and this promptad us to setup a widsly represantative committes under
the chairmanship of Lord Longford, with a mandate to producs 8 workabdlie scheme as

' qulckly s poalﬂln.

Its rop&t was complated ind presanted to the Home Sscratary in November, 1962, A
committas of the Conservative Party produced proposals alnllar In some respects to
those of JUSTICE, but whan Lodd Longford tnitisted a debate tn ths House of Londs, Ilu .
Lord Chancallor sxpressad sympathy with the purposs of our scheme but said in otfcct
that theras wars too many obstacles to be onrcomo. Fortunataly,  as with the r:f’
Ombud:man ‘Wa ware helpad by the mors progressive outiook of the Naw 2ealsnd
Govarnment. The Nsw Zsaland saction of the lntarnat!onal Commission became interest:
in our report, asked for copias and bafors tha and of 1963 had psrsusded its governmant
to lntroduco # statutory schems bassd lamaly on the IUS‘I‘ICE pmpoull. This snabled
us to uo hock to ths Home Bamury and ny to him, tn oﬂoct. *1f Nur Zsaland osn do

; ‘.
{ :
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it, why can‘t weT". The sheft went homs becsuss within stx

months the governmeat ceme forward with (ts ows proposals for a
agh-statutsry axperimental socheme. It differed bowever from ours in
& sumber of respsots . in perticular thet it wes based sn the principles
of common law demages rather than thoss of industris] insursngas sad
that the Board was to consist entirely of lawyers.

The scheme which was not subject to amendment by Paritemsent had

& sumber of other wesknesses. The Boerd was to be seif-goversing
and snswerable only to itsell, however much its decisions might be
conlrary to the prinoiples of natursl juetics. Mambers of & eriminal’s
famtly wers wholly enciuded from the scheme and the previsions for
parssns injured whils helping e police . and for the palice themselwes ,
ware to0 nerrowly drawn. These defeots have besn to some axteat
semadiod but two major ones still csuse concern. Compensetion ces
be dettled to » victim becsuse of his way of itfe o becsuse of some
sct of provocetion ob bis or bar part, sad no lege! aid is svallahis to
cloimants. * cese which highlights both these dafeots 1s thet of
Mr and Mre Duthoit.




Geprge and Dorothy Dutholt had o problem daughter, Jeanetts, who

had bocoms undesirably involved with & married wlsvision eaginser,
David Bulworthy. Ne hed been to thelr house to repair televisisn sets
and had pastersd Jeanetts ever since. One svening to February 1975

she ren off after an srgument with them snd they went round to Mr
Bulworthy's house and accused him of harbouring her, At first he refused
to ist them in but he later did so snd satisfied them she wasn't there.
Aftar some heated snchanges, the Duthoits trisd to leave by the front
door, They found it Jocked and Mr Bulworthy mede them lesve by the
back door, which Jed (nto & garsge. Thay tried to get sut and according
to the siatements theymads o the polics, Mr Nulworthy ploked up &
mellot snd attacked them with it. Xe hit Mr Duthelt repeatedly an the
hoad, csusing » depressed tmoture of his right fronml bone and thres
deep laceratisns. Thess laft him with severs! disabling symptoms and
¢ Coasultent Neuro-Surgeon, Mr David Utley, who sxamined him tn Msy
1976 reported as follows |

“Mr Dutholt appesred the pioture of misery this afternesa. He 88t huddied
in Ms chair constantly twisting his walking stiok and when he sttempted
to speak made gesnures of despeir, He fraquently rubbed his hesd during
the interview in 8 bewildersd way and appecred thorsughly depressed and
snxious and tense. His speech i grossly impeired in Bat he tends to
stammer snd stutter and to break the words into their compensat parts, so
that [ gained an oversll impression that he was spesking like 8 Delek
with o stammer, At times, he was virtually unable to proceed with what
he was saying, and at other times he sesmed to be rather move fluent,
but st no time did he speak nomally,* '

Mr Utley further reported, "He is atill grestly depressed and suffaring
from sanxiety snd tension. He sometimes wishes he wers doad. When he
goes to bed he develops throbbing, stabbing frontal or verticel headachas
whioch shoot down into the back of his neck®, He never fullyrecovered
from his disabilities snd dled at the end of 1983, S




Mrs Duthott was likewiss sttacked by Mr Bulworthy and sustained a
fissal fracture of the left skull and & fractured thumb.

Oun the basis of statements they made to the polios, Mr Bulwerthy was
duly chergsd but he was reisansd on ball and sdded to their anxisties
by terrorising them. At the trial he dismisssd his counse! because "he
would not ask the questions he wanted askad”, and defended himself.
When hs want into the witness-box he said that Mr Dutholt bad sttacked
him with » kitchen knifs snd he supposed that he must have lashed out
at them with the mallst.

The credibility of Mr sand Mrs Duthoit had by then been destroyed
beosuss the svidenos they gave was st varience with the stataments they
wore gliasged to have given the police. The trisl judge's summing-wp was
unduly favoursbls to Mr uiwarthy and be was saquitted sa all aharges.

Prior to the trial, which took place in September 1976, Mr and Mrs Dutheit
hed epplied for compensation to the Criminal Injuries Compensation Board,
bet in Januery the Secretery of the Board informed them that the Siagie Membar
had refused their applioation on the grounds that Mr Bulweorthy had been
found not guilty on all charges and that Mr Dutholt had first attacked hilm
with a kaifs. '

In the mesntime, there had besn a dramatic devalopment. Mr Sulworthy
had remained despematsly in love with Jeanstts, who bad been liviag with
him under duress. 8he was in dasp psychological trouble and both he snd
her parents wanted her to have trestmant., He ocalled on them and in @
series of meetings he admitted thet from foar of having to serve a long
priaon sentence, he had told lies at his trial. Mr Duthoit had not

~ sttacked him with akknife, but Mre Duthoit hed hit him on the nose and he
had gone berserk. Aftar his first visit, Mr Duthoit was advised to tape any
further conversations. In the course of thess Mr Bulworthy asked i he
could make amends by going to the Eriminal Injuries Compensation Board




and thers is suggestion in the Wmpe transoripts that the pelios had been
bribed to doctor the Duthoit's statements.

The tapes ware forwarded to the Polios Compieints Soard and thenos to

the Direotor of Public Prosecutions who decided mot o prosecute Mr
Buiworthy. No legal aid is avalisble for eppeals to the C.1.C.B3. Mt

the Duthoit's solicitors offered to represent them befors a Full Bosrd for

&n advence peymant of £400. Ihe transoripts of the tapes wers submitted
and, somewhat uaususily, the Full Board alsp took into acoouat @
misdlrection in the summing up of the trisl judge. They swarded Mr Duthoit
£18,700 compensation and Mrs Duthoit £1,130, but they hed to bear their -
owa Jege!l costs of 81,085,

Serving prisoners who are ssssulted byfeliow prisoners. or by peisoe
stafl, have the greatsst difficuity in establishing claims for compensstion
snd recetve no help from the suthorities. Although it relates to the desth
of & prisonsr, the case of Albert Frowley is an outstending exempls of
Bome Offios evesion sad obetruction.

Frowiey, 8 young man of 24, had been sentenced to § years imprissament
for & serious saxusl offence sgainst a young girl. On transfer te

Maldstone Prison in May 1978, he bad refused to go 1ot solitary contisement
under Rule 43, is. removel from sesociation with other prisooers. B
wahted bnhndhummtcmhr“; In August 1978 be was
sttacked by & man called Kesson, who was serving & lifs sentence for
munder, On the ssms day Xesson had sttacked snother prisoner, threatensd
to kill » third, ond warned the prison authorities that he could not control
his violent tandencies. They ignored the mmlnﬁi and & weak later Kesson
and another prisoner attscked Prowley ahd killed him.

His parents wore told that he had been killed and that they could sktend
the trial of his murderera, but they were not notifled of the dats. They
wors told nothing ebout the circumstances of their son’s death and in

November 1978 Mr Frowley wrots to the Home Offios Snquiring sbout the

posaibility of compensation oh the grounds that hulﬁ\ sarller 'oﬁf._'__uk on




his son had been ignored and that they ware partly dependant on bim.
The letter wes scknewisdged but dseplie » reminder, Mr Frowley did

not receive & reply uatil 11 maaths later. This enpressed regret ot his
sont's death , but sffered ne enplanation of its olrounstances ond advised
the Prowisys to consuit 8 solisitor about cempensetisn. This hey did
but were told that they would ust get legel aid, and they eould aot afford
to bring an soten st hair own RPIRSS.

in September 1980 the Frowisy's apprumched *JU STIGE” for help ia finding out
the clroumstances of their soa's desth and sbout obisining compensation.
Mdue-mmdhtmdtummmmhuunmﬁ -
mutmuumuuum-m»tnhrmntnuum
and decomposing. My ispsl ssilsague, Poter Asmas , drafted & mansvendun
Mﬂtﬂhﬂh‘kh!ﬂ&ﬂ“hﬁﬂ.h in his reply
unmmmqnmmmutmmm.uoma-u
segrogated after Eeseon had sitacked him. Ne apologised for the delay in
Cagtyong NNWBM. but told them aothing about the ciroumstence:

of hiddoath and advised sn applicetion to the Criminal Iajuries Compensatios

Board.

He should have been betser advised baceuse It wrned eut thet one of e
gaps in U omuﬁutolouiduantmnunomub
loss of ltfe. It could have peid for the burisl and s tombetons but becsuse

, of B0 Prowley's peverty, the Prison Department bad siready done so.

A solicitor member of our Prisonars’ Rights Committee offered to take up
the cass. Lagal aid was refused, but & leading counsel offersd to act
pro deo. s, without fee. A writ was {esusd and the Home Office

‘straightway offered £2,000 compensation plus legal costs, which was

socapted.




David Fresman, whose cass will be fully recounted in & later ohapter,
hsd bean found guilty of & sumber of highly uaplossant sexual offences
sgeinet young beys. e hod protasted his LRROSSROS to JUSTICK and &
fellow-prisoner hed asked him for our address. Perhaps uawisaly. bhe
went into the man's oell with sne of my jetters end was quy
Atm with & kaife sround the face and hoed. Re susteined laseretions
mmauwm-mum;u salfers peraistent hosdashes.
Whes he sppited for compensetion, the Chairmsn of the Daard, soting
as a siagle mamber, swarded him €1 ,000 but reduoed it by $0% becsuse
of his way of life, mmmum-ummmmuom
uuuywmamammm. A frtondiy soltoitor
Mhhbkh.hthrmﬂmwautmmmd
his oase snd he went shead sn his oWh. Ths sulcome was the loand
gowe him o oll sward.

Despite thase defscts, and _n_a_ar_alhr quastionabls decisions. 8 workabls
mmwn-mmmﬁm-mmu-ﬂummm
patd sut over $22 million pounds to viotims of arimioal ssssuits who other-
wise would bove reosived no compensastion. Whenever § was invited %o
sddress gatherings d.dluoﬁuuamdtkmuwsnud
oriminal fjustics, I was invariably asked, "Mr Sargent, do you ever

give any thought to the victims of thase criminals?®, but had o difticulty
in discomforting fny questioner, | ‘
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tt, why oan‘t we?”, Tha mos mt some baoe within six moaths the
governmant came forward at z‘

scheme,, It diffared lrom sumber of resphcts. in particular that it was
based ca the principles f n law damagag rathar than on those of industrial
insurance, end that Soard was 1o consisy/wholly of lawyars.

Despite all this, » workable scheme hed bean sstablished, In the intarvening years
many but not all of its waekknesses have been remsdiad and 1o 1983 the Board paid ou
over £22 nmion pounds to victims of criminal asssults whe otherwise would have
received no compensation, Whenaver I was {ovited to address gatherings of police
officers, ! was tnvariably asked. = )Mr Ssrgant, do you ever give any thought to the
viotime of thase oriminals?7*, ud had no difftculty (a dummiorttnq the quutmor.

In contrast to the victims of criminal assault, tans of thousands men, woméen and
children whe have besn Infured in road accidents have besa deprived of ccmpensation
by the requiremant that they hava to satbitsh fault on the part of the driver of the
wehicle namthh for thelr injury. Thars ors oftsn no withassas to the scoidsnt, or
pountu! witnesses moke off bafore statemsnts can be taken for tham., Zven if they
heve suffictent cvldonw 1o start & clvu sction for damagss, :luy may only have third
pcny inmm They my bs abls to get lagal aid but it can uko yaars before their
casas coms to trial, or thcy can too easily be presssd into aooaptlnq [ wholly
tnsdequate sum, = |
In lwtambar 1972 IUBI'!CS= wetupa committaa undor tha chatmanship o! Paul Smhart

:  £xecutive Committas , to aonlldor whathar {twouldbs
oomponnta vlctlml of accldenta ragardlou q( who {if anyone)




viti: &

a Rays! Commission on Ctvil Liberty snd Gompensation for Bersonal Inpriee

under the ehatrmanship of Lord Prarson. At soon as our laterim report was complated
we gont &t to Lord Pearson pointing put the urgency of desling with the preblom of
road scoidents but hy declined to consider it in (solation.

Our report recommendad that a no-_hult avstﬁm of compensation shouid be subdstttuted
for the existing common-lzw claim for damagas. Tho sxisting haasds of loss sxif suu
b mompensated, but compansation would be immediats, and instead of the lump sum
damage now swarded {t would take ths form of umlnca-nlatad poripdical payments and
could bc adjustad to changas in the victim's enndiuon and the value of meaey.

The Pesrson Comumission dld not raport untll 1978, Over flve yaars atxec it had bosn
amtntod. It nmadsd 3 sysiam of no-llult insurence for the vietins of roed
sccidentsas the mmca raport hed wm:tod but propnnd"&ma shouid bs a calling o%
ao fault damages and that tha tast systam should bo rltal.nod for those with high
sarnings or nrimn tn!urtu. This strengé mpmin mey have alleyed-the fanrs of the
1agsl prohuloh hut 1t did not command itnlf to thu Ganmmcnt of the day er it
PUCOSSSOT, l‘ha Punon npnﬂ 1tas mmtdnlng in tho mwcombc of Whitehall snd
countless vld)tt-t of rotd accidants will mnunua to cry out for the cumpensstion that .
soolety d,étbﬁ thes . '

In lhl niu 'fleld, 'y woukl parlomny fawur 3 ndnng o! ao-feylt insuranos sgainst
ntdlctl naguqms. 1t is vary difficult and omm dlstutaful to bring an action for
danms ughin-t a dootor who may or may. not have bun guilty of nagligeace., Glmmt
)udcnont ginnot ba securately mea sured. Doctars ers undarstandably reluctant to give
svidance dqlmlt asch othar. Actlonn may tatl and tn ﬂ:e absenca of lagal au
prohlhlt!w cottn ba !nourrod.

¢ .
! Sl . ' -
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A mclc aau tn whlch 1 hooam lnvolvad wn that o[ bn Indian whoss wlh went iato _ﬁ
hospital for an dbcrtlon, n wal dscldod to tndueo lt by sxytocin but. tha docior in chlm
of her at ths wedkend léft tbs drlp-!aad functlontnq for longer than ha should have done.
8he went lnw”u cua of boﬁa was token into » aurqiml ward and given s physiocal
sbortion,. Shs deyelopad § &nm' whtch was not taken tnﬁlclently urmtly. was
dltehmwod perwﬂQ\ aﬁq thdod up with urlwo and umatublo hra n damage. ﬁ-r
husbnnd‘a 1 _;nu. . uuo on\tha best uodlul ndvlan thoy could obtala, brought an
action unln:'t. lho doé  who' lnd besn in cherge of the drlp-!ud buwrlan the sotion
came to trisl thcy couw vite no cases in which it had bsen’ uubiuhod ﬂnt SXOBES

T
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dosas of axytoctin had onunm.r: damags. The judgs tharefore hald thet th? sotlen
falisd. ;n axperienced gynaacologist consultant with whom I later discussaed the ouss
took ths vigw that the sxcessiva domage of oxytocin had made tha brein mors wvulnerable
to damags by ths saptic abortion than it would nommally hava bean and that tha sctien
-mwmmm havs been sgainst ths hospital, Whataver ths rights or wrongs of the
euy. this unfortunats woman want into hospital as s haalthy, jatelligent waman and come
sut with the mentality of & child. Withou! compensstion, the husband had to sacrifics his
Business to look aftar her and thair three chilldren. Shs navar racoverad aad tan years
leter poured a8 osn of paraffin over hersalf and burnad to desth.

An squally unsatisfactory situstion axists in raspact of compansation for parsons who have
been wrongfully tmprisoned, They have no statutory right o compansation, their anly legsl
recourss baing by way of 8 civil action for damagas against the police. This 183 diffioult
and hazardous undsrisking beosuse it is nscessary to prove that tha pblice actad
malteiously.

1, howsver, e coavicted person {8 grontéd a fras pardon by tha Homs Secretary under the
Prerogative of Mergy or his conviction is quashed by the Court of Appaal on a latier of
Referancs from the Home Secrstary on the bagis of new avidancs, ha is autamatioelly
grandad sompensation, the amount being dacided by tha Chairman of tha Criminal Injuries
Board after reprasentations by hts solicttor. The Home Sscrotary will'grant compsnsation

"™ in sxosptions! ossas whare thera has baan 8 fault or malpractics on the part of the

moutl@ﬂi.

£
Apart from thno omptlonal cases, no compansation is paysbla to persons whose
convictiohs are quuhad by t.ho Gourt of Appeal aftar a nonmal appeal haering, or to persons
who hwn bem remanded in eunwdy. sometimas for ovor & yaar. snd when thay come up
for trlai are either found not guilty by the jury or discharged by ths judge baceuse he rules
that thora is no case to anﬂur or tha prosscution offers no avtdance. Ths situation is
the smn for thou whon uuz ara dlspoud of in mqglatratas courts. i‘ho conssquanoss
of this can be duutrmu for ‘:ha tndtvtdual conoamad. Apart fram deprivation of iiberty,
. ha may lon his !oh or othpr : "al_ot llvonhood. or. if hls porlod in custody is prolonged,
his wllo ohllduh and haﬁo. X : : ST o
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1 regard this as quite monstrous beosuss thoss who oauss him such loss as be ouffers
sre scting in our neme and -huu be compensatad by the autherities on sur bobalf.

1 was therefors glad to have ths opportunity ghortly before | ratired of drafting the report
of a JUSTICE commtittes on this blot en our system of criminal justios.

Ths problem s not en sasy one - Many asoocused p:renk 2 havs provoked the charges
prought against tham by suspiclous behaviour. Acquittals st trial ars quits oftsz parverss,
They may bs due to the inadequaoy of the mpantton or presegtation of the eass for the
prosacution. Jurias sometimes aoquit, without conlldoring the question of nllt or
innooancs , bacauss thay fesl that the judgs has bsen uniair or 2 polics officer has

hesn caught lying. The queshing of a conviction by ths Court of Appesl does aot
necessarily batoken tonocsncs ~ it may menn that the trial judgs has gons hnnl the
baslis of fairness, or thera has been & material irrogularity which ocannst be condonsd.

It would clearly bs usacosptabie to society to compansats those who owe thelr
soquittals more t¢ chance then to merit and we eonciudsd that to ovarcome this

~ difficulty any .oh-o for awmllnc compansation would have to opsrats outside the
framework of the tucnbm\oc\o& sawmn We thersfors recommended that an Imprisoament
Conp.nnuon Boaxd lhouu be aet up and function on the lines of ths Griminal Injuries
Conpcnntlm foard. On noﬂvlnq sn application it wonld hava ths pow~er t» look ot
any evldoncn m recaive any reprassntations which had not bean bafors the courts, A
refuss! of bemponuuon would not in any wey prejudios the spplioanat baceuss sll the
proaodurc_l and dacisions of m lonrd would be confidsntial. :

P |

£3

Anyoné whou conviction B quashad by tha Court of Appeal on the gmundl mx lt wes
~ unsifs cn- satisfactory would heve an sutomatic rlqht to apply to the Board as wwld tbou
who wers aoquitted by the dlnctlen of the trial 5udca. Psrsons acquittod by }ury.
or hy‘tnaquu-am ;would bs entitied > 23k for 8- cart!floau mﬂﬂtng him
to apply and. if this was ra!uud h{l counesl eould apply. Nndleu to nr thcn
of hand. :

B




CHAPIER IX
CRIMINAL APPRALS  heget Pt

Shortly after the publicatien of our first two reports , the Datly Mirror osrried a full-
page faalure srticle about JUSTICE heudsd "rwzm FOUR JUST MEN", This provekad
& rumber of lattars fiom prisoners complaining that they had bean wrongly cenviotsd
and had basn rafused lsavs to appaal, One of thass lsttara taught me a lesson

1 sometimes wished I had never headed., The writer was a publican oalled Blaskman.
He had quarrellad with his wifs, had & osrvous breakdown, and sought out an elderly
aunt to ask her to lend him the monsy to emigrats to Australia. Her son had come 1a,
dacidad that Blackman was threatening her, and cel 1ed the police. He had besn duly
arrestad , found gulity of damending monay with manaces , and santenced te four years
tmprisonment. He had sant in a notlos of appeal and ordersd to satve an additional
42 days for tmpertinencs,

His catalogus o! woes was formidublas :

{a) His counsel had besn ussisas and afnid to stand up to the judge.
) The voly prosacution witness, his euht, had satd that he wasn't threataning her.

(c) The fudge had kept (nterrupting him wheo he was glving evidence and hed
refused an sdjournmant for 8 psychiatric axamination.,

W) He bad put off sentanca untll the naxt day and told counsel he dign't want
. him to come.

(o) _ Whon he turned up, tha judgs wos angry. cant htm qway. and put off sentenoce
JN unttl the following day, whe hehod ne-se b sr“" Cfand '

Om ‘or two other lettars had worried me but this was too sarious to ignors. I was then
vtr?"nuoh of a naw boy in criminal mattars. but § pluckad up my couregs. rang up the
ltoqiltrar of the Court of Criminal Appeel, Maater King, and asked him ({1 could coms
and lu him about a primmr s latur thet was worrying me, He askad me the man's
uuo md when I arrived H\ his office he had the fils in front of him. I ‘Gove him
Bladkmnn s latter and whh: fe had finishad reading it he looked at me and said; |
"Suu”‘ly, Mr Bamant. o oannot bslieve any of this nonsenss, it's common prisonars’
_You 11 soon learn. What he says just cannot ba trus, He was

1

' tnnt mual, -'
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1 left his office faaling liks & schoolboy who had just received 8 wigging frem the
hesdmastars but baing fer from reassursd s 1 sought out Blackman's counssl and showed

him the lattar. Heving rsad ii, hse hositatsd and then said 1 "I hata having to admit it, t
averything this man says i3 trud. 1t was Mr justics X, 1 had apposred befors him at his
pravigpus Assize whers he was in bad tampar beosuss his brother judge , Mr Justioe Y,

had bean givan ths bast lodglogs. 1 had an up-and-downer with him and for Blackman's
saks 1 just dara not gat up against him again. 1did what 1 could but bs just wouldn't lat me
mitigats for him,"

From that tume [ hava navar disbalievad any prisoner’s story, howsver horrendous, unttl .
" 1 have checked it and found soms good raason to doubt it, [ was oftan soousad of being

too eradulous and | may occasionally bave baen conned , but, if this was @ feult, it
enabisd ms to win 2 numbar of appsals for prisoners when no-one else was williag to
delieve. Ammong tha lattars 1 have most valusd hava pesn from men whom 1 was unabls to
balp but who havs told ma in their own way how much it meant to them that m had
b:iteved tham. The cruslldst aspact of the criminslprocoss is that oncs & mad has bash cO-
‘wictad of an offenca, or avan ohly arrastad and ahamadbha and his family and cuodltn

veiPen

sutomatically forfait sll cradibility and right to in the eyes of authority.

Whaen furthar latters asking for haip with appesis continued to arrive, & young menber of

| m*: -B.lr. Hilary Cartwright , offared to snalyse and sveluate the complaints, Like feyan
 poams bafors har she had put har head round tha door of my office and asked if thers was

anything she could do to help JUBTICE. With the support of Patar Rawl_ih'n_.n. 0.C,, 88 ha !

then wes, w2 wers able to parsuada the Counecil to sat up loomm'itm to inquire lnio sll

tha asprcts of our criminal appaal systam. The committea was chaired by Edward

sutcliffe Q.C. end tncludad four other Q.C.'s, terD acadamic lswyers and four soligitors

nemi:__mtad by the Law Soclaty. Hilary Cartwright was its udrctnfy and gave %‘h'*"“_"‘l

help antil she laft London to taka up an appointment as Lagal Officer in tha Intarn_atlml

Commission.
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Ths Commitise's terms of rafarsnce were wids and ttt nﬂ'iml Ln:intton was to lasue
ona comprshensive report, but beosuse of the aumber and ssciousness of ths complaints
sbout the lack of any provision for legal aid snd advica, the. Gwnd.l ssked it 0
preduocs an Interim report on this problam, Before | discuss it] shouid porhaps set eut
the bara bones of tha criminal appaal systam as it than was, and to a large axtent "
still 1s. Aftar a prisonar had bsan convicted and gsontencad he oould spply for lsave ®
sppeal against eonviction and for sant3nce ithin ten days. His oouanhanl solicitor
were undar no obligatior to advise or asslst him,but if they wantad to, they ceuld slaim
fses of £10 sach undsr thair Lagal Ald ordar. No steps, howasver, ware taken to inform
oonvictad prisonare of this entitlement uader the Legsl Ald snd Advics Act 148 which
had coms into force tn March 1960, Furtharmorz, befora 1366 only one defendant in !lvur
was lotally represanted ot his trial,

The appallant's grounds of appaal, such 83 they ware , word than submitted to &
single Judga togethsr with the dapositions and other matarial that had baen bejore the
Court of trial. The grounds wzra usually quits tnadaquats and oftan {lltterats snd
oould raraly satisfy the raqulramant of at
Judgs could then sither rafuse or grant lsave 1o appsel. i hs cmud leavs, M ﬂn
appadiant would be aliottad counsel to srgua tha sppeal pafore the Full Tourt, 1If the
appaal feiled, thare was no right avan to epply for laava to appeal to the Mouse of Lovds
unlass tha Court of Appas! was willing to cartify that 3 point of law of public um
had ariser which had not yat basn dacided. o vesvnclin MU Sst,

. ’
{4 ﬂu B!nclc Judge refusad tha epp!icetlon the wnt was tiable to be oulond u
gsrve an additional 42 days and, If ha had the \aassily 1o pursus bils nwnatm to the
Pull Gourt, this panalty could b incraasad to 50 days, Furthermors, the Gourt had
ths pawar to {ncreasa santznca. Excapt for murdar convictions, when 8 Lord !utttot
wou\d nomally prasida and a Q.C. be appointad to argus an applloatlon. tho Court
wos oompriud of three puisna Ouean s Bench judgas sittiag n fudgment on tbslr cqualt.
It would thus he dl!ﬂcult to imagina 8 sltuatlon less worthy of tha claim that Emulh
;m‘m wu the best In the world or more daprauqu tn ths! JUSTICE wae tha only '
orqanuatton wtmlr concarnad to do numethlne ahoug oo




Our Interim raport on logal 2(d published in April 1963 recommsndsd swesping reforms ,
ths most importart being :

{1) A Dafanca Cartificats should not lapse after conviction and sentencs, but the
soltcitor's ratainar should bz deemed to contirue 80 and to cover @
{2) advica on app3al

(b) =li matiers connactad with the appeel.

1t should, howsvar, be limited to (8) in casas wher2 sollcitor and/or counszl advisad

that thara t8 no ressonable praogpact of succass,

(2) Thars should bs 8 nawly constltuted Criminal Appsat Ald Committse , composad
of representatives of both sid2s of tha legel profassion, to consider appllcations for
Appaa! Ald Certificates from those who :

{a) waora not raprasantad at thair trial

(b} hed besr sdvigad by thelr lswysrs acling undar 8 Dafanegs cortificeta
that thay hed no grounds of appeal

“{€) wantad to thangs their legal advisars
(1) had bean privately raprasanted but now nsadad lagal aid.

(3) To fill the geps which sven the full implamentation of thesa proposals would
laave, thera should b2 an indspandent appesls pfftcer tn every prison or group ct
prisons , or & schama for the pariodical sttandance at prisons of local soilcitors of
barristers to sdvise on appeals, mattars arising from and sftar the dismissal of
appeals, and family and busines s problems.

Commaenting on this raport, the Lagel correspondant of The Times siad "lhe"";ﬁtorﬁn
report on ‘legsl aid In criminal appaels publtshed yestarday by JUBTICE gou tn the

root of & cc:a alous situation - both convict and judlciary alike ara plagued by a
disasse’ wh;t'h IUSTICE vith Beaching-like aﬁlclency. hos now dlagnoud - an
anachronistic synwm of legal aid for ths wonsictad®, Furthcmou . the Fical Report of
tho Home Omca w::rkmq Party on lagal zid tn Criminal Prooudtnqs. whleh had
uoolved » draft of our npo" wn.‘ publlshog 'Y month hurpud }udouad el {ts
cﬂttclms oi tho axtltlng lﬂm.w




X-3

Daspite these endorssmants, ths fight to secura the implsmaentation of sven ths more
modest of our proposals was long and fruswating, For sxampis , it was not unttl
October 1868, on the recommendation of the Donovan Royal G&mﬁalon’w after
strong opposition from the Law Soclaty - CSriminat-AppeaTs that & solicitor acting
undar a Lagai B1d Ordar,~hich had supersadad tha old @afsnce Gartificata,was

1atd undar & duty to giv> advic? end h2ip in submitting grounds of appaal. The
JUSTICE recommandation that tha lagel aid ordar should additionally covar all matters
conaectad with an app2el has nevsr been acoaptad i; any right to advics and
assistancs ceasas v-ith tha submissions to tha Sirgl2 Judgs. This means that an
appallant cannot call on his counsel to adviss him whethasr or not he should renew
bis application to tha Full Court. The solicitor who submitted the grounds may not
even be toid that thay hava besan rejectad by the Bingle Judgs.

On the racommendation of the Donovan Commission, Lagal Ald Ordars bacems
availadle to cover the circumstancss desoribad (n the JUSTICE Raport, but they ars
grantad only by tha Registrar and usually for 2 iimited purpose. Rapresantation oan
otly be sanctionsd by & judgs. As is the casa with trials, the suthorities have
ldﬂhinﬁy ingistad that the granting 6fmla'q'fal aid tn criminal matters, uniike as {n civil
matters, must rsmain ths sols prerogstive of tha courts. Appesls Officers wars slso
sppotintsd in the largar prisons, but thsy can advise only on administrative matiars.

Bacause of the feilurs of thr Homa Office to see tha problem as 8 whole and grapple
with 1t decisively. the situation grew worse rether than batter, in 19868, spplications
for laave to appesl wars running at the rata of 7,000 & ysar of which only 10% showed
signe of legs! sesistanca. In 1969 the rats had risen to 8,000 and in 1970 to 12,000,
This sharp incresse was largaly due to the abolttion of tha power to Increass sanunoll |
and of the sutomatic 42 day penaity which had baen racommsnded by the Donown '
Commission. It had not b2an reslisad that the strict rattoning of letters and vlslu
imposed on mwly convlctad prisoners wes 8 direct invitation to them to lodga notices
of lppaal {a hich they cmld latar abandon) so that thay could anjoy the privusqo of
unlimited 1stters and vit\ts qranted to an appallant. This abnomal flaw was stammad
by a stern war'tlng that ¢ppllcatlon¢ without merit uould ba panali:ed and by a tightar
i ' prlvllcgo. ‘!lu IUSHEE clll tor a proporly anforcad
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duty to glve lagal advica and a 9(3 of solicitors to advisa on domestic and

business mattars would havs bz3r a much fatrar ramedy than a blankat threat that
datars a victim of an njustics,

In its Annual Rapor: of June 1970 TUSTICE notsd that the provisions of the Criminal
justice Act 1967 for advic: and assistsnca sftar conviction had bean (n the main
ineffectiv: . Solicliors had not racognisad thair responsibilities or baen aware of the
faciiities opan to them or they had bean datarred by the transfsr of their cilents to -
distant prisons or the absanca of » transcriptien ¥ on which to bage an appaal. We
had consinuad to make rapraseantations to th: Home Sacretary and & standard latter on
official papsr was svantually mad2 avatlable for convictad prisonsrs to sand to thelr
solicitors ssking for advic2. Tho Lord Chancallor was asked to write to the Chalrman
of the Bur Council and tha Presidant of the Lsw Soclaty requasting the full co-opsration
of tha profession in implementing the provisions of the 1987 Act,

By 1972 the situation was still far from satisfactory and at our suggestion The Reglatrer,
Mastar Thompson, convanad a small privats conferanos of interasted parties under the
chalrmanship of tha 1ata Mr justica Basw-to revisw tha situation and maks further
rocommendetions to the Lord Chisf Justics and th: Home Bacratary. Ths moat important
of thess was thet when the Criminal Appsal Offics raceived sn applicstion that showsd
no luhs of profrssional assistance his sollcitor should bs asked whether or not he had
recaived 'ttu ndvlcajw which he wes antitled.

Ths o!hsr !mportant problsm discussed was the provision of transeripts to would-be
appallcnta or their advisers. Without a transrlpt of tha summing-up it is dlmmlt.

Lf not impculbia to formulate grounds that will carry any weight with the Court, which
will onty quosh s mnvlctlon if ths judga has bsan guilty of s serlous mtsdlroctton or
srror in law, or of unacoaptabla biag. The Interim Report of IU31'IC£ had highlightad
this dlf!lcu it and w{commanded that tha short transcript, ie, ths summing-up and
santancing pmoaadlngs. should ba mads available to en appcltant on the cartificats of
counsal, but thla hamn\}var bun acoaptnd. The Mlllnqnoss ot the cmrt to provida
transcripts had hnwava} bazn gmdually incresssd and tha farnuh agread wes theta
| woomponlod br mvliional grounds and ask

counnl could :uhmit 84 advios on: af .

tor a short transcrlpt agd mnscnpu of evidenos In ordor to perfact the gmnd:. He is,
.hqwowr. roqulrad © iqutl!v the nquut.
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If & detormined appaliant has been unable to submit sufficiantly cogent grounds

to justify the ordaring of & trenscript a1l hs cen do, if he or his family can

provida the funds, is to ordar a transcript from the shorthand writars, which can
cost up to £3 a paga. As his lsgal aid ordar will hav2 axpirsd he »ill have to
{nstruct solicitor and counsel to advise on grounds and tf nscessary to argus

tha application befors the Full Court. This can opan thy door to gresdy solicitors
who in my expariance sra capsbl2 of charging up t> £1,000 for mounting an appesl
againet conviction end £1,000 for an appaal ageinst santancs, Tt maat thass
dsmands, parants hava mortgaged their houses and » marchant s2aman convictad of

manslaughter was induced to commuta his penaion,

Aftar what saemsd an excassive dajay the recommandations agrezd &t the privats
meating war: in the main agr22d by authorliy and Mastar Thomposa draftad a booklet
of iastructions for circulatio to solicitors and mambers of the Bar sngagaed in
crimtnal practica. But tha problems facing many would-ba appelissts ware by 00
means rasolvad. For exsmpla, wherzes solicitors and counsal warz sskad only
whe:har or not they had providad the statutory advic?, soma who wars pver
snxicus to prove that thay had dona their duty sant th: actusal advica to the
Regigirar, which could not have hzlped thalr client's progpacts. Far mory
impdriantly , the appaz! prospacts of a prisonsr whs had baar wrongly convictad
or givan too heavy » santenc? dapandad. and still dapands very largely on the
SOmpINCE and concern of Ris counsdl. and on the axtant to which his soliciter
is willing and able to axpioft ths facilitias vihich the Registrer is ready to make
avallabls to him. Lavals of compatancs and conoarn vary greatly, aud , sven
whan they ar: high, & wrongly convictad man may still foal ha had baen danlad
lusttm for rsagons which spaak for themsslvas in & lattarl reoaived from an

axporianced counsal,

*1 antmly ag\re& thet tha Deputy-Chaimman's summing-up wasg heavily ‘Hiassad
against the d-tenca It contains 8 graat numbser of commants Eavourabh to th: pros-
mam aha::st none favourshla to the defence, Indsad thd commants mads

on the da!anm widanca are almost all advaru commantt. Da!piu thil , 1 faal

i -,-,_.
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that I could not argua that tha fudgs's comments (n tha summing-up were 8o
unfair as to antitle the Court of Appas! to say that they deprivad the accused of
a fair trial, * A! about tha ssma tima, angther counssl told ma that after a client
for ~hom he had draftad particularly cogent grounds had bee~ ordarad to lose

30 davs by tha SinglaJudgs ¢ h2 viould now hasitate bafors advising anyons to
appaul.

THRMS lotters foilowad a warning by the Lord Chiaf justica, which has sincs been
repaatad, that counaal should not sattis grouads of appeal which they ars not
fully preperazd to argue.

1 hava consiatantly takan tha view , as did my Council, that it 18 wholly wrong to det:
datzr a man, either diractly or through his counsal, from seaking to remedy an
Infustics ha had mﬁerad. particularly whan a waalthy criminsl can smploy
solicitor and counsaj to argue an appaal bafors tha Full Court on grounds that oen J
basgt be dalcribed es trnuous. I have a!ways ballavad and argued that ths only fair
and nnalble way to raduca tha work-load of tha €riminal Appsal Office (stiil
running at 7,000 epplications a yesr) is for tha Lord Chancellor, and the Court of
Appaal to came down Mavlly on judgas who regard it as their duty to assist the
prosscution and protect the polios. A vary largs number of futile appeals are

>( lodged baceuse ths appellants have roason to fesl that their trisls were unfatlr,

I cannot conclude this chaptsr without paying tributs to Dick Thompson, the
!cgutrat' of the Court of Appsal, whosmsapect and friandship I havs valued more
highly than that of any man 1 hava known, Since he was sppointad In 1965, he l;ab
basti"*lrclul in hés afforts to onsurﬁat avary appalisant racaivas asuch e:‘onstdefatlm
as ua- within his powar and has iabrad all his steff with tlu same spirit.

8uch m pmvamanta os JUSTICZ was able to bring about in tha provision of 1ogal aid
in appeala tha bean largaly due to his dadication and concern,
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The vital importance of sdvice and assistanca in criminal appesis, even
sgsinst sentence , oannot be betier illustrated than by the oasen of
Augustus C'Connor and Jemes Kimber.

Augustus O'Connor was an old lsg, without friends or family, who had spent
most of bis years {n hospitals and prisons for minor ilinsssss and minor
offencas. In 1968, two weeks before Christmas, he was discharged from &
Manchester bospltal without funds and without 8 homs to go to. He was
oold and hungry and, as many had dona bafore him , decided that he would
itke to spand Christmes in prison. 8o he ploked up & bottis of milk from &
doorwsy . marched (nt> @ Manchester police station and asked the Bergaant
to charge him with stesling it. '

Ths response was friendly. “Of courss I'il help you,.” repited the Ssrgeant,

_ ®but you'll have to belp me in return, 've got s whole lot of minor offences
i want to clear up. 1f you'll sgres to have thas taken {nto coasiderstion,

I't] speak up for you in court and ses that you don't get more m s month®.
Augustus was willing, and bhs was eventsally taken before the loocsl magistretes
‘with a schedule of somas 30 offences put down to his socouat, The Sesgesnt
kept his word, butl.lnmlotntu‘h.do&tr“and“nthl-upmm
Crown Court for sentencing. When he appearsd there he was paturally
soared. He plsaded gutity to stealing the mlik bottle , but protested that he
had baan tricked into admitting all the other offences. The Sergeant naturally
deniad this and when his record was read out the Recordar took the view

that bhe was an inocorrigible rogus and santenced him (o ten yaars praveative
detantion. This sentenod is now & thing of the past, and quite rightly so,
beosuss it did not carry the ususl statutory remigsion.




Augustus quits natursily appealed, but he was refusad leavo and a2 fellow inmata
advisad him to write to ma. H: told me his sad story and said he was falrly cartaln
that ha had baen in hospital whan some of the allegad offancas had bssn committed.
I chackad ths hospttal datzs and then sasked the Clark of the Court for a schedula of
his sffancas and from this it was quits ciaar that ha could not have
committad well sver half of thar:. Tha Clark agread to joln me in reprassntations to
the Home Offics and the naxi thing | heard was that tha Court of Appeal bad ordarsd
Augustus O'Connor’'s immadiate releasa. But ha had by then sarved 18montha for
ths bottlz of milk and I doubt very much {f the Sergeant was aven reprimanded.

In June 1970 Jemes Kimber, than aged 40, pleadad guilty at Nottingham Assizss to
oftancas of burglary and robbery and was given an axtendaed santancs by Mr Justice
Cusack. Ha had antared a house that had alrsady bsan burglad, drunk 8 bottie of
brandy and made off homa with 4 pthar bottiss of wina and spirits and 8 tins of food to &
total value of €25. Having drunk half a bottle of sharry, he salliad out with it to try

to ralss some monoy and encountsrad an alderly nefghbour. Ha saized the top of his
shirt, brandishad the bottle and damandad some monzy. Ths man producad £1, sad
Kimbor s2izad it and ran off.

In themsalves,thase two offsncas in no way justified 8 tan yaar santshos, but
Kimbar had 8 truly appaliing racord, Ha had spant over 20 of his 40 years in
wistodial lhlumttonl, having sarvad five ysars for armad robberf and sssault, thres
yaars and two years for offics braaking, a number of shortsr ununou“tbr theft and
teking and driving away and finally a 7 year sentanca for armad robbary, from which
he had only racently been raleasad, His counsel, who had mada an elmont plea in
mitigation, advised him that he had no grounds of appeal, but he subﬁattt&d long
grounds of his own. Thesa ware turnad down with scom by ths same judﬁe who had

given him his 7 yesr sentence,




While serving the last three months of his sentance in a probation hosts]l, he had

bsen bafriended and latar given 2 home by an siderly woman, Mrs Dalby., 8She wrots
to the Director of N.A.C.R.C. Wwho passed her latter on to me, From what she told
him, I decidad that it was nacessary to go up to Nottingham Prison and lat Kimber

tell ma his own story. I found him to bs a pathetic littls men snd the facts he gave
me, which 1 was latar abla to confinn, ware both revealing and depressing, and a
sorry indictmart of our panal systan.. His father had bean killad tn action In 1941 and
at tha age of 12 he was sant to a ramand home for stealing a8 tharmomaeter, value 5/-, |
from sutsids a house whila carol singing. For crying and asking to go home, he

was twice baaten with a stick in front of all the other boys. Atfter thres months, he
wag sant to ar approved school for three yaars. He cams osut in {945 and took & job
8s a taa~boy on & bullding site. He then did his National Sarvice and was duchaméd
tn 1950, with charactar "vary good”. In October 1950 he was put on probstion for
stealing a coat out of & sar, but this was the only chanca he was sver given, He

ket out of trouble for 18 months, but from this point a maria for joy-riding brought

him six santances for taking and driving away, Ha also committad two minor robberies.

In 1955 ha was baing driven home by a friend after & drinking bout whan they were
stoppead by two polics officars. They pulled the friand out of the car, Kimber punched
one of the officers to protact him and the othar officar crackad him on the head with his
truncheon. He was taken to hospital and had to have 24 stitchas., The scar was

still visible 2nd he told me that thareafter he suffared acutz periods of depression

from which ha could only sscape by drinking. The Court did what thay regarded as
justica to this episode by sanding him to prison for six months.

The santence of 5 ysars was listad on his record for armed robbary and two related
charges, He'-and a friand had antared the house of a bamer who they knew was out.
He returnad unsxpectadly and found them thera. Kimbar picked up a kaife and
grabbed hold of him. He broks away and callad the police, Ha wes not Injured

and nothing ﬁi's stolan. The saven year santence which foliowed seamed to be even
leas mcrtted._.. Agal.n after a drinking bout, he had been wandearing amnd and .

saw 3 lady llttlnq alena at dinner, He went into her house by e haok door. con!rontad K
her with a toy pubol be had pravioualy bouqht et Woolworths , and ukad her for
money. She qan hun £3 !mm har handbag. He thanked her, want out of the hmu

S




and was later picked up by the police.

While ha was waiting for his rsleasae, in the Nottingham hostal he got a job as a fitter
and his managar gave me an @xcellent raport on his enthusiasm and rellability. Then,
simost tmmediately after his ralaase, the Nottingham C.I.D. questionad him about
two armad robbarias and 2 murder, making enquirias at his home and place of work.
"!hls complataly unarred him. He was tarrified of being lockad up again. He gave up
his job, warnt to his mother in Bouthampton, found theat sha did not want him, and
returnad to Mrs Dalby, only to find that his job was no longsr thera. It was in this
sltate of despair that ha had committad his lest offencas. This was put to the Court,
’f but not his aariler history. Thera was no social enquiry raport, no paychiatric report
5 f snd no mention of tha fact that throughout his criminal carzar the total value of his
#

N _*"’ ; thafts had not axceaded £100 and he had injurad no-ons.

t-k__

_!.vr’aperad & lengthy report for the Court of Appesl which was supporied by letters

< from his probation officar, his smploy#r and 8 nsighbour who had shsarvad the effect
q_r_n"him of the police harassmant, Four counsal turned down mf requast to represant
Ijlm, but 1 avantually found 2 voluntasr. The Court was uaexpectadly receptive snd
reducad hls santenca to thrae years, Ha was raleasad on parole a faw months latar,
girrtad Mrs I.}a_lby and did not raturn to prison tharaefter,
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In January 1964 our Cammittas issusd @ second nterim report. The Goveramant had .
-.axpoct-dly sanouncad its intantion to tntroduoo s Bl smpowering the Court to
ordsr & naw trisl on beiag presented with -- cvldanca. This was prompied by the casc
of Lucky Gordon. a coloursd man who had atteched a witness in the Stephen Ward casa
and whose conviction the Lord Chisf Justics had besn raluctiant o quash putright.
Somawhat tronioslly. 1t was not & sultable cass for the uss of such & power. '

The justios report. which was than (o draft, unanimously racommendsd dhe mnttﬁq

of the powar on fresh evidence and by & msjority of nine to four recommanded the .
granting of & general power. But in supportiog the Btll in principle It stressdd that

its benafita would be negligibls unless the Court adopted a wider intergretation of fresh
evidance and that its self-imposed restrictions ware contrary to the axpress wishes of
Parlisment. This theme was so forcibly pressed tn both Houses of Perilament lbit the
Attomey-Genesel aad ths Homes Sscretary conceded that the Cnu‘t -uhl fsnl ol!lul wpon
revise its practice. This has turnsd outtoba & m hope. The judges hawe mtﬂbn&\g
rsfused 1o follow the wishas of Perliament. Indaed, o the courss atmdchhulu
House of Lords . Lord Parker virtuslly sald that, whatevar Parliament leid down, the pahicy
of the Court would not be effectsd. e

madnnnmhrmcmnofmmmumt it in difficuit cases nma?w
sdditions!] option to thlnc or allowing an sppesl.The advantage for the -pmdut o
Ilntanow trisl allows lhl s8w evidance tolbnba }udgadbynmmﬂn tgl

~ all the other "tdnot rather than by judgn m o onlr take a mmud m.

Appallants must mly prefer to be given a sacond chance of prwlnq Iulr lnnoam
hofora s jury than to haw thelr appsals dtmluod Irn the outoome, the puur hamu.,

| se-nmy und Mﬂt that appeliant counsel rarely tinvoks it. In the (aur ruri

1973-!931 only seven’ mw trisls were ordared and in 1982 none. This un oo ”W
lead to danials of lultlm. 1t is surely significant that in 1982 out of 1352 amali
agalnst conviction, tha' Qourt of Appasl allowsd only 113 (8 por oent whcrni In appels
from Magistrates courts b iho Crown Court, which are oompiau uhnﬂnm wt o‘
6083 awﬂah. 1698 (27 par mnt) wore auawod. '_ et o
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recommendations were :

(1) A radical reconstitution of the Gourt of Criminsl Appeal$ (as 1t was then called) to
giva Lt true sppellate status.

(2) A wider intarpretation of new svidenos.

(3) A new ground of appesl, namely that it would be unsafes , having regand to all the
svidanos . to allow the verdict of the jury to stand.

(4) The abolition of the power to incresse ssntencs and tha automstic infliction of a 42
dey panalty (which could axtend to 90 days) for appeais without marit.

(5) An extsnsion of the time sllowdd for lodging an appeal (then only 14 days).

In respect of our first recommendation, it may now be regardad aa beyond hollo! that the
Court could be and often was composed of thres puisns judges from the ml Beach
Division, bmiond by years of omung oriminal trials ., sitting in judgement o m
faimess ot Ar brethren; whe wngw be semer b Wl .

On the mosning of the raport's publication I beppensd to mest outside the Roye! Gourts of
lu:t‘l?a : Sgnuy appointsd judgs who had boon & mambar of ons of our commitises and
e grodiadme with, “Hello, Tom, I'm giad to soe thet you sre baving o crack et Whess
boys in there®. I was invitad to mske my first sppearanoce in o television peogramms and
oan racell saying, *A wmlymmd man could bang his hesd in ageinst the walis of
his cell for il anyons in suthority cares”, 1 still hoid the same view although I might
expraas it more circumspeotly, |

Within a very faw wesks, the Government mn«d he »wutmt of l lw-l
Commission under the chalrmanship of Lord Donoven, Our svidence hed f{ dectsive
--nwtoniuaubmum mﬂaumthtmuluautomh:ﬁu Lurm Mr
l'lut the puhltutlon of its report, he greeted me with, *Well, Tom , wo‘iu gim you
nearly everything you ssked for”. B _ F;
_ | | /
(t) Ths Court of Crunlnal Appoa! lhould conso 1o exist as a separste anttty. but bemada
Division of tha Court of Appeal in which judges from other divisions :hould be .ntitlcd
to eit and at lesst two Lords Justices -hould be required to hnr ur!nus <D wlctlon CoE

-

appeals.

& racommendations of the Donovan leﬁlon wore hnplmonud in the Grmtﬂl-
Appeel Aot.lsss by which time Loed Gardiner, who had bsen » uunbtt of mr Committes,

had bscome l.ad Chano-not. Its main provisions clouly ionmd tho rommdatlam
'sot put abow wtth two lmpnrtant varlatlonl. vtz t :
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(it} The Court shouid be requesied to allow an appasl if it thinks thet the verdict
of the jury under all the clroumstances of the oese in unsafe or unsatisfaotory. or if

thers was & material irragularity in the courss of a triel.

(1) The word ‘substantial' should be deleted from the proviso which at present enabias
the Court to dismiss 8 technioelly well~founded appeal if it considers that no
substantial misosrriage of justics has soourred.

Tha appearancs of civil judges in the Gourt ceme like & breath of fresh air and I was
abis to promots three successful sppeals which would have stood wery iittle chanos
under the old regime. But befors many mooths, ths alane bells must have sung in the
judge's esrridors and 1 encountared the sams old reluctance to sliow appesls wiich. in-
the opiaion of counsel bad considersble marit. The Justice Ansusl Report of Juae 1967
steted, "Wae are not yst satisfisd that the Court is making full use of its powars under
the Act. Wa aro alsc disturbed by the possibllity thet, with the sbolttion of the' fixed
penaity, meritorious sppsals mey be deterred by the Court's warning that an sppabiant
who does not sccept the decision of the Bingle Judge and presses his appesl to the Fou
Court may have his sentence increased by the full time has bas spest as 88 sppeliant
‘This warning is iocludsd lacvﬂmﬂﬂ of rejection by » Single Judga and in 1978 &)
the Lord Chisf Tustios issusd 8 dlneun to counsel that they should nol settle Srounds of
cppulualou mywmmpnudwmmum the Full Court, Thess determnts
ware designed to decrease the muyumnbh losd of work on the mﬂatm
Criminal Appesi Offics but they have unﬂwbtdlv had the etfect ol sherting ‘soorda of
: libhntuny ncuulhl upuu. After the mhq to counsel we ynw ha ll"d!-f
to The Ttmes, #0d In two subsequent Anmusl Reports, that the mammdw‘
mesns of wtung down the number of applications for lsava to appul wn for WI Jodaes
to provide fawer causes bf complaint about thelr conduct of trials and tu' the cdn.}t ok

Appul to condemn rather than condone irregulerities ond blas. S

The intantlons of Parliamant when it pessed the Criminal Appeal Aot wan to bb m\“nu‘
diluted by o dirsctiva that an appeal against santsncs could be dtumlnod by!twlro jobogs
snd that a Sl.nglc hdgo who had rajactsd an applicetion could sit in tho Gwrt ﬂut
datermined a nn-wpd application. But this was not all, Om o! ahow mvu\oas
of the 1966 Act was that aSingle Judge thould qlvo brief ressons !or rolmtlnq an
appllcatlon. The importance of this 1s that 1t helps the appollant at hll mhnl

| docldo whnthor of not to prnt his app!toattan to the Full court - _‘____”;__-’ L
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<nd third requirement osn be davastating in its consequences for & man who has been
wongly convicted baceuse of shortcomings on the part of those who defendad him.
His solicitor may have felled to interview an importent 'imuﬂ'han?‘_m an
nadeqguats or misisading statemants from him which induced mmlﬁw oall kim.

Hia may not have felt justified in inourring the cost of tracing & witness or bave
disught 1t his duty to protact the lsgsl sid fund. In the famous case . of Luke Dougherty,
recounted Lo & later chaptsr. his solicttor thought it sufficient to call oaly three
witnesses to testify that he had bsan on & soach trip with 25 Mptr:’mcnd the
Court ruled that he could not call any more witnesses on appesl. In the case of o

men convictad of armed robbery on police evidenos his soliciter and counssl bad taken
lhﬂﬁr that they nesd only osll five respactable witnesses to swasr that they had
mmamcm-mwnmmamm Poc kis applicetion for
lsave to appesl, Nsnﬂdmhﬂaamﬂdumulm.wnm:
with sifidavits o0 of the cosi) Gounsel axpleined that they hod not beea celled
“to the Aid Fund, lutﬁoﬁuﬂnﬁudhlut“ h

Miscamrisges ﬁn;umeMwMMalmmlmm“n.
_omumanudmlm&ﬂmw:. Sometimes it {3 not
‘thetr ault. Mmmmummtm.mmmwuum
wuumsadmy”hﬂruﬂ%dummmhlwu
 them, m;mummmmm Mmm snd
unbonat&oomud‘ihnﬂéhﬂudhmmw. mnmh’m
dmmtehoiu. u;m--:m m_ﬂﬁ'_

amll ultnuul. M prasi h toll the &ult what -m .

; Ausoeliaved. Gt
wtudt:mﬂhdbmu thoyéuaotmtuuy mt st was’ lhuhyafunlu

aeouud bad come oul‘o! pruou.

Whamwr may have h»n lho mnn tor t!u hl!uu to mll ovulom that wu anlubh
. al:!lho trial, the courteflmd will aot !llm h lt, wam ttmmn llm of
- datonco am was not put torwnrd lt ﬂu tria!. ‘This auns :hat . momly convlctcd
mn mey have to pay the ponalty &u‘ tho mm: of lawycn wl:ou .ppolnhoat
: _wu outatdo glo oontrol This u mlr mng m !ult!« l:u um so ln no unwtaln
‘terms,. The egum sdvanced for m rule is that mumt u mml wmld daltbmuly try

tohan ‘ma_' hlatﬂuchmv'
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thmhm&mmbnhlﬁuuuuunhﬂnntmw but
Qmm‘mmwl\vo‘u by Fase bﬂ?h)'n.‘..,"n- S eamwian € 1&._'1;%

hars are twe other self-imposed fatiers which iahibit the éourt fram remedying
alscarriages. The first is ita unseasoniog respect for the verdict of & jury and
aywillingness to interfers with it, uniass thars have besn serious matesial
Wmsmwmuamtwmammmmmummmm
of farneas. lumuﬂonuthMnuMuMam-ﬂdMV
mﬁmﬂdnnﬂ&utwhm“mbw One of 1t
anmuunmnﬁmum“yumyumua
vl&mthﬂmmaoﬂuatm‘&ﬂtnmmwmw 3 it s
M»mamuumbmu-um Wam '
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